
 

City of Sandy 

Agenda 

Planning Commission Meeting 

Meeting Location: City Hall- Council 
Chambers, 39250 Pioneer Blvd., 

Sandy, Oregon 97055 

Meeting Date: Monday, August 26, 
2019  

Meeting Time: 7:00 PM 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 

 

 1. ROLL CALL 

   

 

 2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

   
 
 2.1. May 28, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes  

Planning Commission - 28 May 2019 - Minutes - Pdf 

3 - 9 

 
 2.2. June 24, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes  

Planning Commission - 24 Jun 2019 - Minutes - Pdf 

10 - 15 

 
 2.3. July 22, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes  

Planning Commission - 22 Jul 2019 - Minutes - Pdf 

16 - 24 

 

 3. REQUESTS FROM THE FLOOR - CITIZEN COMMUNICATION ON NON- AGENDA ITEMS  

   

 

 4. OLD BUSINESS 

   
 
 4.1. Public Hearing   
 
  18-030 DR/VAR/CUP Funtime RV  

 

Based on the language of the code as written, staff recommends the Planning 
Commission hold a public hearing to take public testimony regarding the proposal. 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission deny the requested conditional use, 100 
percent outdoor product display or storage of merchandise. Additionally, staff 
recommends Planning Commission deny the requested Type III Special Variance from 
Subsection 17.90.110(D)(1) to eliminate the required 50 percent building frontage 
standard. 

  

The Planning Commission has also been presented with the alternative interpretation 
(Exhibit M) of the phrase “except as specifically authorized as a permitted accessory 
use” to consider. This interpretation provides an alternative that if supported by the 

25 - 187 

Page 1 of 187



 
Commissioners, would provide justification for the Planning Commission to approve 
the requested conditional use, 100 percent outdoor product display or storage of 
merchandise. Should the Planning Commission choose to make this interpretation 
staff notes the proposed landscaping provides a combination of trees, shrubs, and 
ground cover that softens the appearance of the RVs from the public street while 
enhancing the pedestrian environment and adding to the intended “village” scaled 
development which is required per the regulations of Chapter 17.92 and addressed 
within the guiding principles of Subsection 17.90.00(C). In addition to the landscaping, 
the proposed ornamental fence provides an additional element of screening of the 
proposed use, outdoor product display or storage of merchandise, which assists in the 
development complying with the design regulations of Chapter 17.92 as well as adds 
a design element to enhance the pedestrian environment and “village” scale Chapter 
17.90 strives for.   
18-030 DR/VAR/CUP Funtime RV - Pdf 

 

 5. NEW BUSINESS 

   

 

 6. ITEMS FROM COMMISSION AND STAFF  

   

 

 7. ADJOURN 

   

 

Page 2 of 187



 

 

 

MINUTES 

Planning Commission Meeting 

Tuesday, May 28, 2019 City Hall- Council 
Chambers, 39250 Pioneer Blvd., Sandy, 

Oregon 97055 6:30 PM 

 

 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Don Carlton, Commissioner, Ron Lesowski, Commissioner, Hollis MacLean-Wenzel, 
Commissioner, Jerry Crosby, Commissioner, John Logan, Commissioner, Chris Mayton, 
Commissioner, and Todd Mobley, Commissioner 

 

COMMISSIONERS ABSENT:  

 

STAFF PRESENT: Kelly O'Neill, Planning Director, Emily Meharg, Associate Planner, and James Cramer, 
Associate Planner 

 

MEDIA PRESENT:  
 

1. Roll Call  
 

2. Consent Agenda   
 2.1. Approval of Minutes 

 
Motion: To approve minutes for March 19, 2019 
Moved By: Commissioner Lesowski 
Seconded By: Commissioner MacLean-Wenzel 
Yes votes: Commissioners Carlton, Logan, Mobley and Chairman Crosby  
No votes: None 
Abstentions: Commissioner Mayton since he was excused from this meeting. 
The motion passed. 

  
Motion: To approve minutes for April 8, 2019 
Moved By: Commissioner Ron Lesowski 
Seconded By: Commissioner Logan 
Yes Votes: Commissioner Don Carlton, Mobley, Mayton, and Chairman Crosby 
No Votes: None 
Abstentions: None  

 

 

3. Requests From the Floor - Citizen Communication on Non- Agenda Items  
 

Page 1 of 7

Page 3 of 187



Planning Commission  

May 28, 2019 

 

4. PRESENTATION 
Transit Master Plan Update (Andi Howell and Michelle Poyourow) 

  
Poyourow said the first phase of the master plan has been completed which consisted of 
gathering information from the public. Poyourow said she analyzed 10 years’ worth of data 
that consisted of ridership per service hour on all services that Sandy offers. She also 
reviewed potential high ridership possibilities.  

  
Poyourow shared information regarding a stakeholders advisory group composed of 18 
people that met in April of 2019 to discuss ridership goals vs. coverage goals for the City of 
Sandy. 11 out of the 18 people said higher ridership was a more important goal and the 
remaining 7 people felt higher coverage was more important. With regards to in-town trips, 
stakeholders saw fixed routes as a higher priority for higher ridership. The public input was 
requested via online and paper copy surveys regarding walking vs. waiting. The public 
expressed that there was a preference for service designed to minimize waiting by asking 
them to walk a little farther. With this information Poyourow went on to explain that this 
would mean that routes can be concentrated into fewer lines and in turn offer higher 
frequencies with possibilities of quicker trips. 

  
In October a Final plan will be developed. Poyourow emphasized the importance of having 
future developments be transit oriented. Poyourow asked for Planning Commissioners to 
provide feedback or questions at this point.  

 
Planning and Building Director Kelly O’Neill Jr. added that the Transportation Systems Plan 
(TSP) revision is in final phases of negotiations. O’Neill mentioned that Andi Howell, Transit 
Operations Director, would serve on the Technical Advisory Committee for the TSP revision.  

 

 

5. OLD BUSINESS  
 

6. NEW BUSINESS   
 6.1. 18-034 ANN Bird Annexation 

 
Staff Report - 0142 
 
Chairman Crosby opened the public hearing on File No. 18-034 ANN (Bird Annexation) 
at 7:15 p.m. Crosby called for any abstentions, conflicts of interest, ex-parte contact, 
challenges to the jurisdiction of the Planning Commission, or any challenges to any 
individual member of the Planning Commission.  

  
Commissioner Todd Mobley recused himself due to conflict of interest. Crosby 
proceeded to call for the staff report. 

 
Staff Report: 
Associate Planner Emily Meharg summarized the staff report and addressed the 

 

Page 2 of 7

Page 4 of 187



Planning Commission  

May 28, 2019 

 
background, factual information, public comments staff received, applicable criteria, 
and presented a brief slide show. There was discussion and clarification about 
locations for utilities. Meharg finished her report with the summary and conclusion.  

 
Applicant Presentation: 
No applicant present. 

 
Proponent Testimony:  
None 

 
Opponent Testimony: 
None 

 
Staff Recap: 
None 

 
Applicant Recap: 
None   

 
Discussion: 
There was discussion on the Flood, Slope, Hazard (FSH) analysis. Commissioner Hollis 
MacLean-Wenzel asked if the annexation meant that the city would need to provide 
utilities. Meharg affirmed that it would not and that the future developer of the site 
would need to pay for the utilities.  

  
Commissioner Carlton suggested to move forward and send the recommendation to 
City Council.  

  
Commissioner Lesowski asked about pros and cons, taxes and fees, is there a 
downside for the City to annex?  

  
It was pointed out that the property is inside the UGB and the question is only WHEN 
not IF the property will be made part of the city limits. Staff clarified that the property 
will be zoned Single Family Residential (SFR) and the FSH overlay will be applied.  

 
Motion: To Close Public Hearing at 7:35 p.m.  
Moved by: Commissioner Carlton  
Seconded by: Commissioner Lesowski 
No votes: None 
Abstentions: None 
The motion passed. 

 
Motion: To recommend approval of File No.18-034 ANN (Bird Annexation) with the 

Page 3 of 7

Page 5 of 187



Planning Commission  

May 28, 2019 

 
recommendations as stated by Planning staff to City Council. 
Moved by: Commissioner Carlton 
Seconded by: Commissioner Mayton 
Yes votes: Commissioner Carlton, Lesowski, MacLean-Wenzel, Logan, Mayton and 
Chairman Crosby 
No votes: None 
Abstentions: None (Todd Mobley had recused himself) 
The motion passed. 
 
Moved by Don Carlton, seconded by Chris Mayton 

Staff Report - 0142 
 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission hold a public hearing to take testimony on the 
proposed annexation and forward a recommendation to City Council. If the Planning 
Commission recommends approval of the annexation request, we suggest adding a condition 
of approval that the standards and criteria of the FSH overlay will apply to development of the 
property in accordance with the standards in effect at the time of development. 
 

CARRIED.   
 6.2. Type III Design Review - Fun Time RV (18-030 DR/CUP/VAR) 

 
Staff Report - 0143 
 
Chairman Crosby opened the public hearing on File No. 18-030 Fun Time RV at 7:37 
p.m. Crosby called for any abstentions, conflicts of interest, ex-parte contact, 
challenges to the jurisdiction of the Planning Commission, or any challenges to any 
individual member of the Planning Commission. Crosby proceeded to call for the staff 
report. 

 
Staff Report: 
Associate Planner James Cramer summarized the request which included a Design 
Review, a Conditional Use for 100 percent outdoor product display or storage of 
merchandise and a Special Variance to eliminate the required 50 percent building 
frontage standard. Cramer presented staff’s recommendation of denial of the 
Conditional Use based on the limitations of Subsection 17.90.110(J)(1) as well as 
denial of the requested Special Variance based on the guiding principles of Subsection 
17.90.00(C) and the design compatibility identified within Subsection 17.90.00(D).   

  
Applicant Presentation: 
The applicant’s representative, Tracy Brown of Tracy Brown Planning Consultants, 
LLC, spoke in favor of the application and requested a continuance be granted for the 
applicant to have adequate time to respond to staff’s recommendation. Mr. Brown 
added the site was previously approved for a similar use (i.e. the expansion of the 
existing Fun Time RV site to incorporate additional display of RVs for sale).    

 

Page 4 of 7

Page 6 of 187



Planning Commission  

May 28, 2019 

 

  
Discussion: 
There was discussion on the language presented in Subsection 17.90.110(J)(1) and 
how it is applies to the proposal. Commissioners questioned the previous approval 
mentioned by Mr. Brown to which Mr. O’Neill, Planning and Building Director, 
confirmed a previous approval was granted for a similar use however after confirming 
the interpretation with City Attorney, David Doughman, it appeared the code may not 
have been applied correctly. It was then requested that the Planning Commission be 
briefed or provided a copy of the previous approval for reference. A suggestion to 
incorporate additional elements, such as landscaping and fencing was presented to 
improve the pedestrian environment along the frontages of the site. 

  
Motion: To Close Public Hearing at approximately 7:45 p.m.  
Moved by: Not recorded 
Seconded by: Not recorded 
The motion passed. 

  
Motion: To continue File No.18-030 DR (Fun Time RV Design Review) to the August 
26, 2019 Planning Commission meeting. 
Moved by: Commissioner Lesowski 
Seconded by: Commissioner Logan 
Yes votes: Commissioner Carlton, Lesowski, MacLean-Wenzel, Logan, Mayton, Mobley 
and Chairman Crosby 
No votes: None 
Abstentions: None 
The motion passed. 
 
Moved by Ron  Lesowski, seconded by John Logan 

Staff Report - 0143 
 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission hold a public hearing to take public 
testimony regarding the proposal. Staff recommends the Planning Commission deny 
the requested conditional use, 100 percent outdoor product display or storage of 
merchandise. Additionally, staff recommends Planning Commission deny the 
requested Type III Special Variance from Subsection 17.90.110(D)(1) to eliminate the 
required 50 percent building frontage standard.  

  
Contrary to the staff recommendation if the Planning Commission decides to approve 
the requested minor conditional use and/or special variance staff recommends it be 
conditioned on the applicant redesign the site’s landscaping plan to include landscape 
strips to be a minimum of 7.5-feet wide or include a wheel stop to protect the 
landscaping. In addition, staff has concluded the proposed landscaping does not meet 
the intent of 17.92.50(A) therefore the applicant shall resubmit a landscape plan that 
provides a combination of trees, shrubs, or evergreen ground cover of at least 75 

Page 5 of 7

Page 7 of 187



Planning Commission  

May 28, 2019 

 
percent of the required landscaping area for staff review and approval. 

   
 

CARRIED.  
 

7. Items from Commission and Staff   
 7.1.  

There was general discussion about current developments in Sandy. O’Neill 
mentioned that the solar farm west of Shorty’s Corner is supposed to be screened 
from view. Continued brief discussion regarding Transit Master Plan with interest in 
moving people around town more effectively.   

 

 

8. Adjourn   
 8.1.  

Motion: To adjourn  
Moved By: Commissioner MacLean-Wenzel 
Seconded By: Commissioner Mobley 
Yes votes: All Ayes 
No votes: None 
Abstentions: None 
The motion passed.  
  
Chairman Crosby adjourned the meeting at 7:49 p.m.  

 

 

 

 
 

 
____________________________ 

Chair, Jerry Crosby 

 

 

 

Page 6 of 7

Page 8 of 187



Planning Commission  

May 28, 2019 

 

____________________________ 

Planning Director, Kelly O'Neill Jr 

Page 7 of 7

Page 9 of 187



 

 

 

MINUTES 

Planning Commission Meeting 

Monday, June 24, 2019 City Hall- Council 
Chambers, 39250 Pioneer Blvd., Sandy, 

Oregon 97055 7:00 PM 

 

 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Don Carlton, Commissioner, Ron Lesowski, Commissioner, Hollis MacLean-Wenzel, 
Commissioner, Jerry Crosby, Commissioner, John Logan, Commissioner, and Chris 
Mayton, Commissioner 

 

COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: Todd Mobley, Commissioner 

 

STAFF PRESENT: James Cramer, Associate Planner 

 

ATTORNEY PRESENT: David Doughman 
 

1. Roll Call  
 

2. Approval of Minutes   
 2.1. Planning Commission Minutes 

 
Motion: To approve the minutes for June 10, 2019 with correction to the signature 
and Section 5.1 
Moved By: Commissioner MacLean-Wenzel  
Seconded By: Commissioner Mayton  
Yes votes: Commissioners Carlton, MacLean-Wenzel and Logan  
No votes: None  
Abstentions: Chairman Crosby since he was excused from this meeting.  
The motion passed.  

 

 

3. Requests From the Floor - Citizen Communication on Non- Agenda Items  
 

4. OLD BUSINESS   
 4.1. 18-057 DR/CUP Dutch Bros Design Review/Variance/Conditional Use Permit 

 
Staff Report - 0135 
 
Associate Planner James Cramer went over the staff recommendations and what has 
changed from the previous land use hearing. 

 

Page 1 of 6

Page 10 of 187



Planning Commission  

June 24, 2019 

 

  
Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve the proposed conditional use, a 
drive-through facility, as well as the proposed Mainor Partition with modifications as 
recommended in the staff report. Staff also recommends the approval of the three 
variances/adjustments with associated conditions. 

  
Applicant Testimony: 
Braden Bernards 
504 NW 18th Ave, Portland, OR 97209 

  
Mr. Bernards provided an overview of the project. He explained the proposed design 
and how it came about. Updated on issues discussed by the Commission and 
community at the April public hearing. Property has gone almost 30 years changing 
hands, yet it is still empty and nothing had come to fruition. After purchasing the site 
with due diligence, applicant met with staff and worked closely with them to develop 
a proposal. Staff suggested the patio and civic space for gathering and comfortable 
access for all transportation modes.  

  
Bearing in mind the goal of developing the east-side of Sandy as a commercial 
corridor, they opted to partition the northside of the property rather than make it 
only parking area.  

  
During the site design, they used an F-350 as a model for turning radius, as the 
Commission had requested. Applicant wanted to build as close to the property line as 
possible and were able to do so by including a drive-thru canopy that was designed 
with ‘Sandy Style’ heavy timbers and stone, with a pitched roof. Raised pedestrian 
crossings that will connect the sidewalk to the patio will ensure that pedestrians are 
within line of sight for motorists in the drive-thru. 

  
Mr. Bernards addressed the changes and updates to the proposal including but not 
limited to the following:  

• added bike parking and benches on Proctor Blvd.  
• removed Hogan Cedars and Maples due to the height concern and worry 

about attracting beetles  
• adjusted the stormwater system so it is solely located in the parking lot 

• updated the lighting plan to utilize soft lighting 

• §verified that rooftop equipment will be screened and not visible from the 
ground 

• stated the existing trees on the property have been surveyed by Oregon Tree 
Care and 11 must be removed due to poor health  

• submitted a traffic impact analysis finding there is no anticipated conflict 
between 7-11 traffic and the proposed ingress  

• DEQ has submitted a letter with their findings 
• the fence to the north of the property will be fixed to preserve a peaceful 

Page 2 of 6

Page 11 of 187



Planning Commission  

June 24, 2019 

 
backyard during and after construction  

  
Mr. Bernards also explained the applicant has come to an agreement with All-County 
Surveyors. 

  
It was explained that the applicant submitted the updated plans and narrative to City 
staff. 
Following the changes, staff issued a new staff report with 28 conditions of approval. 
The applicant has agreed to all conditions. 

  
PGE has determined they cannot compel Mattress World to switch to an underground 
system so the applicant will grant them an easement. Applicant will submit a formal 
letter from PGE.  

  
Applicant expressed excitement to be a part of Sandy. 

  
Damien Hall 
Attorney with Ball Janik LLP, 101 SW Main Street Suite 1100, Portland, OR 97204 

  
Commended the City staff and Mr. Bernards for working together on taking a site that 
has a lot of constraints and molding the objectives of the applicant and Sandy Style. 
Referred to the exhibits for more information on the updated narrative, conditional 
use and variance standards. The project provides significant screening and 
opportunities to improve the pedestrian experience. The applicant has gone above 
and beyond to ensure there is adequate room for stacking and parking so that the 
traffic on HWY 26 will not be impacted. There is a traffic study and analysis to confirm 
this. Since this location will be so visible from the HWY, they have made sure Sandy 
Style will be highly present in the building design.  

  
Mr. Hall then explained that customers will interact with a person to order so there 
will be no noise from reader boards and that noise from cars on-site won't be 
distinguishable from regular traffic on HWY 26. DEQ will make sure stormwater is 
treated by “best practice” standards for handling any contaminated media and to 
make sure any of that contamination is not released into the environment. The 
applicant is working with DEQ to ensure air quality will be minimally impacted.  

  
Went over the variances requested and how the plan meets the code.  

1. Place core building 18 ft (code mandates 10 ft.) off the property line. The 
layout of the property allows for only one ingress and egress, at 18 feet 
setback the building will allow enough drive way to wrap around to 
accommodate the anticipated traffic. The canopy was offered as a 
compromise as it will embrace “Sandy Style” and will be within the setback.  

2. Flat roof for the core building. The need for this arises from the small 
footprint of the building. 

3. Reduce the required building frontage on the street. Need arises from the 

Page 3 of 6

Page 12 of 187



Planning Commission  

June 24, 2019 

 
small building footprint. The intent of the code shall be met because parking 
has been placed behind the building and the frontage is maximized by the 
patio and the drive-thru.   

  
Proponent Testimony: 
None 

  
Opponent Testimony:  
None 

  
Staff Recap: 
Associate Planner Crammer will consult with PGE and the wording of the condition 
related to overhead powerlines.  

  
Motion to close the public hearing 
Moved: Commissioner Lesowski 
Seconded: Commissioner Carlton 
Carried 
Hearing closed at 7:55 pm. 

  
Discussion: 
Commissioner Carlton congratulated the applicant on the presentation and working 
with all stake-holders. Commissioner MacLean-Wenzel added that she was impressed 
with their ability to work with stakeholders in the community. Commissioner Mayton 
stated that he hadn’t been enthusiastic after the first presentation, but his doubts 
have been laid to rest with this revised presentation and updated submittal.  

  
Motion: to approve File No. 18-057 DR/CUP with the partition, conditional use, and 
each of the three variances. 
Moved By: Commissioner Carlton 
Seconded By: Commissioner Mayton 
Yes votes: Commissioners Carlton, Lesowski, MacLean-Wenzel, Logan, Mayton and 
Chairmen Crosby 
No votes: None 
Absent: Commissioner Mobley. 
The motion passed. 
 
Moved by Don Carlton, seconded by Chris Mayton 

Staff Report - 0135 
 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission hold a public hearing to take 
public testimony regarding the proposal. Staff recommends the Planning 
Commission approve the proposed conditional use, a drive-through facility, as 

Page 4 of 6

Page 13 of 187



Planning Commission  

June 24, 2019 

 

well as the proposed Mainor Partition with modifications as recommended in 
this report including but not limited to the following (required order of 
submission and completion of improvements/inspections will be detailed in the 
final order):  

 

 Staff recommends the approval of the following 3 variances/adjustments with 
associated conditions: 

a) Variance A: To construction primary structure setback 18 feet from the 
subject property’s front (south) property line when Subsection 17.42.30 limits 
front setbacks to a maximum of 10 feet for properties within the C-1 zone 
district. Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve the requested 
special variance to increase the maximum front (south) yard setback to 18 feet 
with the condition the proposed, or approved alternative, landscaping, 
pedestrian access, civic space canopy and drive-through canopy are 
implemented to the development.  

 

b) Variance B: To construct a flat roof with parapet features on the 
proposed primary structure when Subsection 17.90.110(C)(1) requires a 6:12 
roof pitch on all new buildings with a span of 50-feet or less. Staff recommends 
the Planning Commission approve the Special Variance to the roof pitch 
standard and allow the primary structure to incorporate a flat roof with 
parapets with the condition the secondary features retain the proposed 6:12 
roof pitch, or approved alternative, and the primary roof design complies with 
the standards set forth within Subsection 17.90.100(C)(8)(b) – Flat Roof.  

 

c) Variance C: To reduce the required 50 percent building frontage 
standard of Subsection 17.90.110(D)(1) to 23 percent. Staff recommends the 
Planning Commission approve the Special Variance to reduce the building 
frontage to 23 percent with the condition that the proposed civic spaces, or 
approved alternative, be incorporated at time of development.  
 

CARRIED.  
 

5. NEW BUSINESS 

None 

 

 

6. Items from Commission and Staff 
Next Meeting July 22  

 

 

7. Adjourn 
Motion: To adjourn 
Moved By: Commissioner MacLean-Wenzel 

 

Page 5 of 6

Page 14 of 187



Planning Commission  

June 24, 2019 

 
Seconded By: Commissioner Logan 
Yes votes: All Ayes 
No votes: None 
Abstentions: None 
The motion passed. 
Chairman Crosby adjourned the meeting at 8:04 p.m. 

 

 

 
 

 
____________________________ 

Chair, Jerry Crosby 

 

 

 
____________________________ 

Planning Director, Kelly O'Neill Jr 

Page 6 of 6

Page 15 of 187



 

 

 

MINUTES 

Planning Commission Meeting 

Monday, July 22, 2019 City Hall- Council 
Chambers, 39250 Pioneer Blvd., Sandy, 

Oregon 97055 7:00 PM 

 

 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Don Carlton, Commissioner, Ron Lesowski, Commissioner, Hollis MacLean-Wenzel, 
Commissioner, Jerry Crosby, Commissioner, John Logan, Commissioner, Chris Mayton, 
Commissioner, and Todd Mobley, Commissioner 

 

COMMISSIONERS ABSENT:  

 

STAFF PRESENT: Kelly O'Neill, Planning Director and James Cramer, Associate Planner 

 

MEDIA PRESENT:  
 

1. Roll Call  
 

2. Approval of Minutes  
 
 2.1. April 22, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Draft Minutes.  

 
Moved by John Logan, seconded by Hollis MacLean-Wenzel 
 
Motion: To approve minutes for April 22, 2019 with the change Commissioner Mayton 
noted 
Moved By: Commissioner Logan 
Seconded By: Commissioner MacLean-Wenzel 
Yes votes: All Ayes 
No votes: None 
Abstentions: None 
The motion passed. 
 

CARRIED.  

 

 

3. Requests From the Floor - Citizen Communication on Non- Agenda Items  
 

4. OLD BUSINESS   
 4.1. 18-026 ANN - Bloom Annexation 

 
 

Page 1 of 9

Page 16 of 187



Planning Commission  

July 22, 2019 

 

Staff Report - 0163 
 
Crosby opened the public hearing on File No. 18-026 ANN (Bloom Annexation) at 7:03 
p.m. Crosby called for any abstentions, conflicts of interest, ex-parte contact, 
challenges to the jurisdiction of the Planning Commission, or any challenges to any 
individual member of the Planning Commission. No challenges were made, and no 
declarations were made by the Planning Commissioners. 

  
Staff Report: 
Associate Planner James Cramer summarized the staff report and addressed the 
background, factual information, public comments staff received, applicable criteria, 
and presented a brief slide show. 

  
Applicant Presentation: 
No applicant present. 

 
Proponent Testimony:  
None 

 
Opponent Testimony: 
Donna Lazenby, 19271 Averill Parkway, Sandy, OR 97055 
Concerns about traffic. 

  
James Cusick, 38806 Jerger Street, Sandy, OR 97055 
Concerns about an existing easement and stormwater runoff. 

 
Staff Recap: 
Cramer, Doughman and O'Neill addressed concerns from the two people making 
public comments. 

 
Applicant Recap: 
None   

 
Discussion: 
The Commissioners added some context to the public testimony. Commissioner 
Carlton explained that the Commissioners are reviewing the proposal, but not doing 
the development. Commissioner Lesowski stated that stormwater and traffic 
concerns will be evaluated further before the property is developed. Commissioner 
Mobley and MacLean-Wenzel thanked the public for attending the meeting and 
encouraged people to participate in the Transportation System Plan (TSP) process and 
Urban Forestry code modifications. 

  
Motion: To Close Public Hearing at 7:27 p.m.  
Moved by: Commissioner Carlton  

Page 2 of 9

Page 17 of 187



Planning Commission  

July 22, 2019 

 
Seconded by: Commissioner Mobley 
No votes: None 
Abstentions: None 
The motion passed. 

 
Motion: To recommend approval of File No.18-026 ANN (Bloom Annexation) with the 
recommendations as stated by Planning staff to City Council. 
Moved by: Commissioner Lesowski 
Seconded by: Commissioner Mayton 
Yes votes: Commissioner Carlton, Lesowski, MacLean-Wenzel, Logan, Mobley, Mayton 
and Chairman Crosby 
No votes: None 
Abstentions: None 
The motion passed. 
 
Moved by Ron  Lesowski, seconded by Chris Mayton 

Staff Report - 0163 
 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission hold a public hearing to take 
testimony on the proposed annexation and forward a recommendation to City 
Council. If the Planning Commission recommends approval of the annexation 
request, we suggest adding the following conditions: 

1. Prior to the future development of the subject property the standards 
and criteria of the Flood & Slope Hazard (FSH) Overlay District (Chapter 
17.60) shall be applied to the subject property. 

2. Prior to the future development of the subject property the Flood & 
Slope Hazard (FSH) Overlay District map shall be updated to include the 
subject property.  

3. Prior to the future development of the subject property the 
development shall be limited to no more than 43 single family lots or 
388 average daily trips. 

4. Prior to the future development of the subject property an applicant, or 
representative, shall confirm the conditions associated with Case File 
No. Z0169-19-HL have been fulfilled (Exhibit Q).  

 
CARRIED.   

 4.2. 18-046 DR/VAR Stow-A-Way Mini Storage 
 
Staff Report - 0164 
 
Crosby opened the public hearing on File No. 18-046 DR (Stow-A-Way Mini Storage) 
at 7:38 p.m. Crosby called for any abstentions, conflicts of interest, ex-parte contact, 

 

Page 3 of 9

Page 18 of 187



Planning Commission  

July 22, 2019 

 
challenges to the jurisdiction of the Planning Commission, or any challenges to any 
individual member of the Planning Commission. Crosby stated he was not present at 
the first evidentiary hearing on June 10, 2019 but has reviewed the materials and 
meeting video and feels comfortable weighing in on the matter. 

  
Staff Report: 
Associate Planner James Cramer summarized the staff report and addressed the 
background, factual information, public comments staff received, applicable criteria, 
and presented a brief slide show. 

  
Applicant Presentation: 
Michael Robinson, Attorney with Schwabe Williamson and Wyatt, 1120 NW Couch 
Street, Portland, OR 97209 
Mr. Robinson stated that the units do not allow for a pitched roof but does not 
believe that flat roofs as proposed impacts nearby properties. The property is heavily 
screened, and it is very difficult to see the storage units from Highway 26. He stated 
the purpose of the I-2 zoning district is to have less visible properties and 
development. Robinson said the area for the storage units is within 50 feet of the top 
of bank but is in the same location as previous outdoor storage. He stated the 
applicant is fine with restoring the area to the west of the storage units with native 
vegetation and installing a fence. 

  
Proponent Testimony:  
None 

 
Opponent Testimony: 
Susan Drew, 37770 HWY 26, Sandy, OR 97055 
Ms. Drew stated she was happy to hear that staff is recommending the storage units 
meet the setback requirements to the top of bank for No Name Creek. Also, she 
would like people to apply for requests prior to coming into City Hall to ask for 
forgiveness. 

 
Staff Recap: 
Cramer and O'Neill commented on Mr. Robinson's letter that he submitted and also 
the deviations, variances, and adjustments that are being requested. 

 
Applicant Recap: 
Mr. Robinson explained the map and setbacks to top of bank. He suggested that 
additional vegetation is installed in the area not impacted by the paved surface or 
buildings. Robinson said he agrees with staff that this site lends itself to flat roofs 
especially because of the location of the buildings. He also stated that a decision 
tonight will not set precedence for future projects. The top of bank setback is a line 
and the addition of the buildings did not impact existing native vegetation. 

  
Applicant - Lacy Renard, 22611 Van Curen Road, Eagle Creek, OR 97022 

Page 4 of 9

Page 19 of 187



Planning Commission  

July 22, 2019 

 
Ms. Renard explained the reason the structures were installed without seeking 
planning and building approval. She said that the existing storage facility was 
consistently full and she had a list of people they were turning down for storage units. 
She stated that the material that was previously on gravel within 50 feet of No Name 
Creek was potentially more harmful to the wetland than the storage units would be. 

  
Susan Drew asked if the units are on a foundation. Ms. Renard stated the units are on 
concrete runners or footings. 

  
Commissioner Mayton asked if the containers are mobile. Ms. Renard stated the units 
are not permanently fixed to the ground. 

 
Discussion: 
Commission Mayton asked if we go back in time and act like the containers are not 
there would we allow a modification to the top of bank setback requirements? 
Commissioner Carlton stated that if there is a space to install the structures at 50 feet 
from the top of bank then yes we would require the structures at 50 feet from the top 
of bank. Mayton then stated he agrees with staff for the most part in regard to the 
setback from top of bank, but he does not care about the roof slope. Carlton stated 
the Sandy Style colors should apply. Staff explained the I-2 zoning district does not 
require adherence to the Sandy Style color palette. 

  
Lesowski asked if the existing fence is going to be modified per the submitted site 
plan? Is Exhibit C in the packet correct with the proposed fence location? 

  
Applicant - Chris Warnock, 37330 Ruben Lane, Sandy, OR 97055 
The fence has been there since about 1992. The fence shown on Exhibit C (site plan) 
to the south of X-C is not correct. Mr. Robinson added that an additional condition 
could be that Exhibit C is revised to reflect the existing improvements and proposed 
improvements. 

  
Summary of main items during discussion: 
Design Deviations 
Approve existing siding - No concerns from Commissioners 
Approve not having a primary entrance facing a public street - No concerns from 
Commissioners 
Approve not having a connection between the right-of-way and building interior - No 
concerns from Commissioners 
Approve the elimination of sheltered overhangs - No concerns from Commissioners 
Deviation to lighting standards - No longer applicable as the applicant has stated they 
will comply with lighting regulations in Chapter 15 of the Sandy Municipal Code. 

  
Special Variances 
Setback of 30 feet to the property line - No concerns with from Commissioners 

Page 5 of 9

Page 20 of 187



Planning Commission  

July 22, 2019 

 
Deny flat roofs as constructed - The Commissioners stated they are fine with the flat 
roofs and determined they were not in favor of staff’s recommendation to modify the 
roofs. 

  
FSH Overlay Adjustment 
Deny setback adjustment to the Top of Bank for No Name Creek – Commissioners 
Carlton and Mayton both stated that they are not comfortable allowing the setback 
adjustment as it does not meet the code criterion. O'Neill then provided a 
compromise and suggested the following adjustment: X-B can remain, new asphalt as 
proposed could be installed, and the portion of X-C in the setback would need to be 
moved and replaced with native vegetation. Warnock stated they could definitely 
relocate three of the storage units (8 feet wide each) from X-C in another section of 
the site outside of the Restricted Setback area to No Name Creek and plant 
vegetation as recommended. 

  
Motion: To Close Public Hearing at 9:28 p.m.  
Moved by: Commissioner Lesowski 
Seconded by: Commissioner Maclean-Wenzel 
No votes: None 
Abstentions: None 
The motion passed. 

 
Motion: To approve File No.18-046 DR (Stow-A-Way) with the following motion: 
Approve the design deviations nos. 1-4 as presented in the staff report, approve a 
special variance for the property line setback and replace gravel located in the 
Restricted Development Area (RDA), approve a special variance for a flat roof, and 
approve an adjustment to the FSH Overlay by allowing the relocation of the three 
most west units of X-C elsewhere on site but the adjustment allows for X-B and 
asphalt in the RDA with the condition that additional gravel will be replaced with 
native vegetation. The motion also included the requirement to improve the area 
between new units and existing pavement with asphalt/concrete and provide an 
internal circulation plan detailing how the site will limit access to Buildings X-A, X-B, 
and X-C. All other conditions and findings in the staff report are applicable. 
Moved by: Commissioner Carlton 
Seconded by: Commissioner Logan 
Yes votes: Commissioner Carlton, Lesowski, MacLean-Wenzel, Logan, Mobley, Mayton 
and Chairman Crosby 
No votes: None 
Abstentions: None  
The motion passed. 
 
Moved by Don Carlton, seconded by John Logan 

Staff Report - 0164 
 

Page 6 of 9

Page 21 of 187



Planning Commission  

July 22, 2019 

 

Design Deviations:  

1. Approve the requested Design Deviation from Subsection 
17.90.130(C)(3).  

2. Approve the requested Design Deviation from Subsection 
17.90.130(E)(1) to allow the development to not include a primary 
entry facing a public street or designated pedestrian way. 

3. Approve the requested Design Deviation from Subsection 
17.90.130(E)(3) to not include an entrance connecting directly between 
the right-of-way and the building interior.  

4. Approve the requested deviation to eliminate sheltered overhangs or 
porticos at pedestrian entrances for Units A, B and C 

5. N/A. The applicant has indicated within the submitted narrative 
(Exhibit N) the criteria of Subsection 17.90.130(H) will be met. Condition 
2 in this staff report requires the applicant to provide the materials 
needed to determine compliance which shall be completed prior to the 
issuance of the final Certificate of Occupancy.  

  

Requested Special Variances: 

1. Approve the requested special variance (referenced as Variance A 
within Staff Analysis) to reduce the front (west) yard setback for Unit B 
to 18-feet and approve Unit C to be setback 24-feet from the front 
(west) property line with the condition the applicant replaces the 
gravel located within the Restrictive Development Area (adjacent to 
Unit C) with native vegetation and erect a fence along the newly 
identified Restrictive Development Area setback (25 feet) to discourage 
future encroachment and bring the site closer into compliance. 

2. Staff recommends the Planning Commission make one of the following 
conditions regarding Variance B: 

A. Deny the request to eliminate the requirement of Subsection 
17.90.130(D), or 

B. Approve a special variance to reduce the required roof pitch with 
the condition the structures (Units A, B and C) incorporate sloped 
roofs with pitches equal to the existing structures on site (IE 
congruent with the existing Stow-A-Way Mini Storage 
structures).  

  

Requested FSH Overlay Adjustment: 

1. Staff recommends the Planning Commission deny the Type III FSH 
Overlay Adjustment request as criterion 1, 2 and 5 have not been met. 

  

Should the Planning Commission choose to approve the request staff 
would recommend the approval be conditioned upon the applicant 

Page 7 of 9

Page 22 of 187



Planning Commission  

July 22, 2019 

 

replacing the gravel located within the Restrictive Development Area 
with native vegetation and erect a fence along the newly identified 
Restrictive Development Area setback (25 foot) to discourage future 
encroachment and bring the site closer into compliance. 

  

Staff recommends approval be conditioned on the applicant completing option 
A or B below: 

A. Improve all driveways, aisles and turnarounds associated with onsite 
maneuvering for both the existing and proposed storage units/buildings 
located on the subject property, or 

B. Provide an improved aisle between the proposed pavement and 
existing pavement along with an internal circulation plan as to how the 
site will limit access to Buildings X-A, X-B and or X-C to the improved 
aisle(s).   

 
CARRIED.  

 

5. NEW BUSINESS  
 

6. Items from Commission and Staff   
 6.1.  

O'Neill presented upcoming items on the August 26th Planning Commission meeting. 
Carlton asked questions about the new House Bill 2001 regarding housing.  

 

 

7. Adjourn 
Motion: To adjourn  
Moved By: Commissioner MacLean-Wenzel 
Seconded By: Commissioner Mobley 
Yes votes: All Ayes 
No votes: None 
Abstentions: None 
The motion passed.  

  
Chairman Crosby adjourned the meeting at 9:45 p.m. 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 8 of 9

Page 23 of 187



Planning Commission  

July 22, 2019 

 

 
____________________________ 

Chair, Jerry Crosby 

 

 

 
____________________________ 

Planning Director, Kelly O'Neill Jr 

Page 9 of 9

Page 24 of 187



 

Staff Report 

 

Meeting Date: August 26, 2019 

From James Cramer, Associate Planner 

SUBJECT: 18-030 DR/VAR/CUP Funtime RV   
 
Background: 
At the May 28, 2019 Planning Commission meeting File No. 18-030 DR/VAR/CUP Funtime RV was 
approved to be continued to the August 26, 2019 Planning Commission meeting.  Jerry Fisk submitted 
an application seeking approval for a minor conditional use permit to increase the subject property’s 
outdoor product display/storage of merchandise to 100 percent when Subsection 17.42.10(C)(8) limits 
the amount of outdoor product display/storage on a site to 10 percent as an accessory use. The 
application has been elevated to a Type III review and must obtain Planning Commission’s approval. In 
addition, no building is proposed to be on the subject property and the applicant seeks a Type III Special 
Variance from Subsection 17.90.110(D)(1) to eliminate the required 50 percent building frontage 
standard. The site will be used to store and display recreational vehicles in association with the retail 
establishment Funtime RV on the adjacent property to the west.    
 
Recommendation: 
Based on the language of the code as written, staff recommends the Planning Commission hold a public 
hearing to take public testimony regarding the proposal. Staff recommends the Planning Commission 
deny the requested conditional use, 100 percent outdoor product display or storage of merchandise. 
Additionally, staff recommends Planning Commission deny the requested Type III Special Variance from 
Subsection 17.90.110(D)(1) to eliminate the required 50 percent building frontage standard. 
  
The Planning Commission has also been presented with the alternative interpretation (Exhibit M) of the 
phrase “except as specifically authorized as a permitted accessory use” to consider. This interpretation 
provides an alternative that if supported by the Commissioners, would provide justification for the 
Planning Commission to approve the requested conditional use, 100 percent outdoor product display or 
storage of merchandise. Should the Planning Commission choose to make this interpretation staff notes 
the proposed landscaping provides a combination of trees, shrubs, and ground cover that softens the 
appearance of the RVs from the public street while enhancing the pedestrian environment and adding 
to the intended “village” scaled development which is required per the regulations of Chapter 17.92 and 
addressed within the guiding principles of Subsection 17.90.00(C). In addition to the landscaping, the 
proposed ornamental fence provides an additional element of screening of the proposed use, outdoor 
product display or storage of merchandise, which assists in the development complying with the design 
regulations of Chapter 17.92 as well as adds a design element to enhance the pedestrian environment 
and “village” scale Chapter 17.90 strives for.  
 
Code Analysis: 
See attached Revised Staff Report  
 

Page 25 of 187



Budgetary Impact: 
None.  

Page 26 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

1 

 
 
 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REVISED STAFF REPORT 

TYPE III LAND USE PROPOSAL 
Strikethrough shall represent removed/updated text. 

Red Text shall represent new text. 
 

 
 
SUBJECT:  File No. 18-030 DR/VAR/CUP Funtime RV   
 
AGENDA DATE:  May 28, 2019 August 26, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Planning Division 
 
STAFF CONTACT:  James A. Cramer, Associate Planner 
 
EXHIBITS:  

Applicant’s Submittals 
A. Land Use Application 
B. Notification List and Mailing Labels 
C. Project Narrative 
D. Civil Plans 

▪ Sheet C1: Cover Sheet 
▪ Sheet C2: Existing Conditions/Demo Plan 
▪ Sheet C3: Site, Grading Plan & Landscaping Plan 
▪ Sheet C4: Concept RV Display Layout 
▪ Sheet C5: Beers Avenue Plan & Landscaping Plan 
▪ Sheet C6: Utility Plan 
▪ Sheet C7: Details – City of Sandy 
▪ Sheet C8: Details – City of Sandy 
▪ Sheet C9: Details – ODOT 
▪ Sheet C10:  Details – Detention Facility 

E. Preliminary Stormwater Report 
F. Photometric Analysis and Fixture Cut Sheet 
G. Pre-Application Notes and Staff Correspondence 

 
Agency Comments 
H. City Engineer (March 22, 2019) 
I. Oregon Department of Transportation ODOT (March 22, 2019) 
J. Public Works Director (March 25, 2019) 

 
Supplemental Documents Provided by Staff 

Application Submitted: July 10, 2018 
Additional Submittal Items: February 7, 2019 
Application Complete: March 5, 2019 
120-Day Deadline: July 3, 2019 
 

Page 27 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

2 

K. File No. 09-001 CUP Final Order 
L. Final Order 14-026 (Fred’s RV Variance)  
M. City Attorney Interpretation  

 
Applicant’s Submittal Continued 
N. Civil Plans 

▪ Sheet C1: Cover Sheet 
▪ Sheet C2: Existing Conditions/Demo Plan 
▪ Sheet C3: Site, Grading Plan & Landscaping Plan 
▪ Sheet C4: Concept RV Display Layout 
▪ Sheet C5: Beers Avenue Plan & Profile 
▪ Sheet C6: Utility Plan 
▪ Sheet C7: Detail Sheet – City of Sandy 
▪ Sheet C8: Detail Sheet – City of Sandy 
▪ Sheet C9: Detail Sheet – ODOT 
▪ Sheet C10:  Detail Sheet – Site 
▪ Sheet C11:  Detail Sheet – Detention Facility 

 
I. BACKGROUND 
 

A. PROCEEDING 
 
Type II Minor Conditional Use, Type II Design Review, and one Type III Special Variance. 

 
The proposal includes the three applications/requests identified above, which vary in review 
types (Type II and Type III) therefore the Planning & Building Director has elevated all 
applications to the highest number procedure for review (Type III) per the allowance of 
Subsection 17.18.00. 

 
B. FACTUAL INFORMATION 
 

1. PROJECT NAME:  Funtime RV Design Review/Special Variance/Conditional Use Permit   
 

2. APPLICANT/REPRESENTATIVE:  Tracy Brown with Tracy Brown Planning Consultants, 
LLC 

 
3. OWNER: CVP – Jerry Fisk with Red One Holdings, LLC 

 
4. LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  T2S R4E Section 13 BC, Tax Lot 3900 
 

5. SITUS ADDRESS:  38477 Proctor Blvd. 
 

6. PROPERTY LOCATION:  Located on the northwest corner on the Proctor Blvd./US HWY 26 
and Beers Ave. intersection.   

 
7. PROPERTY SIZE:  The overall site is approximately 13,985 square feet (0.32 acres).  

 

Page 28 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

3 

8. PROPOSAL:  Jerry Fisk submitted an application seeking approval for a minor conditional 
use permit to increase the subject property’s outdoor product display/storage of merchandise 
to 100 percent when Subsection 17.42.10(C)(8) limits the amount of outdoor product 
display/storage on a site to 10 percent as an accessory use. The application has been elevated 
to a Type III review and must obtain Planning Commission’s approval. In addition, no 
building is proposed to be on the subject property and the applicant seeks a Type III Special 
Variance from Subsection 17.90.110(D)(1) to eliminate the required 50 percent building 
frontage standard. The site will be used to store and display recreational vehicles in 
association with the retail establishment Funtime RV on the adjacent property to the west. 

 
9. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATION:  Retail/Commercial 
 
10. ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION:  C-1, Central Business District 

 
11. SERVICE CONSIDERATIONS:  The proposal does not include connecting to any public 

facilities except for stormwater system. The proposed stormwater system will connect to the 
public line located near the corner of Pleasant Street and Beers Avenue. Due to the nature of 
the development the applicant does not propose making improvements to or connecting to 
water, sanitary sewer or fiber services. Staff finds this to be acceptable at this time and notes 
that any future development on this site will be required to meet the standards of Chapter 
17.84.60.  

 
12. RESPONSE FROM GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES, UTILITY PROVIDERS, CITY 

DEPARTMENTS AND THE GENERAL PUBLIC: 
a. City Manager – No comments received 
b. Public Works Director – Exhibit J 
c. Sandy Police Department – No comments received 
d. Transit Director – No comments received 
e. City Engineer– Exhibit H 
f. PGE – No comments received 
g. Fire District No. 72 – No comments received  
h. Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) – Exhibit I 

 
C. APPLICABLE CRITERIA: 

Sandy Municipal Code (SMC): 17.12 Procedures for Decision Making; 17.18 Processing 
Applications; 17.20 Public Hearings; 17.22 Notices; 17.28 Appeals; 17.42 Central Business 
District, C-1; 17.66 Adjustments and Variances; 17.68 Conditional Uses; 17.84 Improvements 
with Development; 17.90 Design Standards; 17.92 Landscaping and Screening; 17.98 Parking, 
Loading, and Access Requirements; and Chapter 15.30 Dark Sky Ordinance 
 

D. BACKGROUND INFORMATION/HISTORY  
The subject property was issued a permit (Permit No. 1010) in September of 1999 for the 
demolition of a house in conjunction with a Fire Department controlled burning. Since the 
home’s demolition the site has been vacant and is generally flat with an approximate 7-foot 
elevation between the southeast and northeast corners of the property. Currently the site has a 
maintained grass covering throughout the property and a split-rail fence extending the length of 
the south property line fronting Proctor Blvd./US HWY 26. Additionally, the site has 

Page 29 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

4 

incorporated a wire fencing material with wooden posts extending the length of the east property 
line fronting Beers Ave. which is currently unimproved.  
 
The adjacent property to the west, 38415 Proctor Blvd./US HWY 26, received a Conditional Use 
Permit (File No. 09-001 CUP, Exhibit K) to operate an automobile, truck, marine and 
recreational vehicle repair facility which included retail sales of pre-owned automobiles, trucks, 
and parts and accessories. The business associated with this approval was known as Fred’s RV. 
Funtime RV has since taken ownership of the site and continued the use. On December 19, 2014 
the Planning Commission approved a special variance for the subject property to display and sell 
RV’s for a maximum period of 12 months on the existing unimproved property to be associated 
with Fred’s RV (File No. 14-026, Exhibit L). Condition B.1 stated, “Approval of the Special 
Variance expires 12 months from the date of issuance of this Final Order (December 19, 2015). 
Any use of the property for RV sales or any other use beyond this date requires submittal and 
approval of a new variance application or design review approval and completion of required 
onsite improvements.” The existing owner of Funtime RV has made the request for a Minor 
Conditional Use permit to increase the subject property’s outdoor product display/storage of 
merchandise to 100 percent as well as a Special Variance from Subsection 17.90.110(D)(1) to 
eliminate the required 50 percent building frontage standard. The revised proposal includes 
landscaping and an enhanced fence design on the south and east property lines to provide a 
buffer between the public right-of-way and the proposed use of the property, outdoor 
display/storage of merchandise.  

 
Per the submitted narrative, the project is “proposed to expand the area of recreational vehicle 
parking and storage for the Funtime RV business located on the four lots directly west of the 
subject property.” After consulting with the City’s attorney, staff determined the property would 
have to complete one of the following options: 
 

A. Review the subject property as a separate site and request a special variance to 
Subsection 17.90.110(D)(1) eliminating the required building frontage for the site, 
or  

B. Review the property as a whole including the four (4) contiguous properties to the 
west under the same ownership (i.e. the existing Funtime RV site), and apply the 
existing development standards to the entire site.   

 
When presented to the applicant and their representative, option A was the chosen path.  

 
E. PROCEDURAL CONSIDERATIONS   

This request includes a Type II Minor Conditional Use, Type II Design Review, and one Type III 
Special Variance. The proposal includes the three applications/requests identified above, which 
vary in review types (Type II and Type III) therefore the Planning Director has elevated all 
applications to the highest number procedure for review (Type III) per the allowance of 
Subsection 17.18.00. 

 
Prior to the May 28, 2019 Planning Commission hearing the application completed the following 
steps to ensure the application met local and state requirements for a complete application:   
 

• July 10, 2018 Application Received 
• July 12, 2018 Incompleteness Letter Sent 

Page 30 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

5 

• August 15, 2018 Pre-Application Meeting Held as required by the Director 
• August 28, 2018 Incompleteness Letter Sent 
• November 21, 2018 Meeting held with Jerry Fisk (owner) 
• February 7, 2019 Resubmittal Received 
• March 5, 2019 Completeness Letter Sent  

 
At the May 28, 2019 Planning Commission meeting the applicant’s representative, Tracy Brown 
with Tracy Brown Planning Consultants, requested this application (18-030 DR/CUP/VAR) be 
continued to a future Planning Commission meeting. After hearing an abbreviated staff 
presentation, an applicant presentation and public testimony was sought, the Planning 
Commission voted unanimously (7:0) to keep the hearing open and continue it to the August 26, 
2019 Planning Commission hearing. 
 
Staff met with the property owner, the manager of the Sandy Funtime RV location and Tracy 
Brown on June 19, 2019, per the request of Mr. Brown, to discuss the proposal, staff’s 
interpretation and alternatives to consider. At this meeting staff recommended the applicant 
consider proposing additional frontage improvements to enhance the pedestrian environment to 
better conform to the design guidelines and compatibility standards identified within Chapter 
17.90 of the Sandy Development Code.   
 

F. PROCEDURAL CONSIDERATIONS   
This file is being processed as a Type III Design Review because there is a special variance 
associated with the special variance. Notification of the proposal was mailed to property owners 
within 300 feet of the subject property and to affected agencies on April 30, 2019 with a courtesy 
notice sent August 14, 2019. A legal notice was published in the Sandy Post on Wednesday, May 
8, 2019. Since the meeting was continued to a date certain the second hearing date was not 
published in the Sandy Post. 
 

II. ANALYSIS OF CODE COMPLIANCE  
 
CHAPTER 17.42 – CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT (C-1) 

This district is intended to provide the community with a mix of retail, personal services, offices and 
residential needs of the community and its trade area in the city's traditional commercial core. This 
district is not intended for intensive automobile or industrial uses. This district is intended to provide the 
principal focus for civil and social functions within the community.  

This commercial district is intended for civic uses and to provide all basic services and amenities 
required to keep the downtown the vital center of our community. While the district does not permit new 
low-density building types, it is not intended to preclude dwelling units in buildings containing 
commercial activities. All development and uses shall be consistent with the intent of the district, as well 
as compatible with the space, access and exposure constraints and opportunities of the central city.  

RESPONSE: The proposal includes developing the subject property solely as outdoor product display 
or storage of merchandise for recreational vehicles. As noted within this subsection, the C-1 zone 
district is not intended for intensive automobile or industrial use. It can be interpreted that this section 
of the code refers to uses that reasonably produce an increase in the number of vehicular trips and/or 

Page 31 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

6 

increase in vehicular traffic. The submitted narrative (Exhibit C, Page 3) includes analysis from the 
applicant regarding “intensive automobile” uses. Within this analysis "intensive automobile" uses is 
interpreted to include “those uses such as drive-through restaurants or coffee kiosks that generate high 
traffic volumes.” Within the analysis of Subsection 17.68.20(C), staff confirms it is unlikely the proposed 
use, outdoor product display or storage of merchandise, will generate additional trips to the site and 
therefore analysis of traffic impacts was not required of the applicant.  

In addition, afterAfter review of the permitted uses within Subsection 17.42.10, staff has determined an 
alternative interpretation it can be interpreted that “intensive automobile” use also refers to uses that 
are directly related to auto oriented uses such as auto dealerships. This analysis is supported in that all 
commercial uses allowed within the C-1 zone district require a building as detailed within Subsection 
17.42.10 of this report. As detailed in this subsection, all development and uses shall be consistent with 
the intent of the district therefore staff finds that the proposed use of the site solely as outdoor 
display/storage is not consistent with the intent of the district and therefore, should be denied.  

Additional analysis on compliance with development intent can be found within Chapters 17.66, 17.68 
and 17.90 of this report.  

17.42.10  PERMITTED USES   
 
RESPONSE: Within the submitted narrative (Exhibit C) the applicant has identified the intended 
primary use of subject property is to be for “recreational vehicle parking and storage for the Funtime 
RV business located on the four lots directly west of the subject property” Subsection 17.42.10(B)(1)(a) 
permits retail sales of recreational vehicles in buildings with up to 30,000 square feet of gross floor 
area. After consultation with the City attorney, staff determined this standard finds that a building is 
required to be associated with the retail sales of recreational vehicles. In other words, the sale of 
recreational vehicles without an associated building is not a primary use permitted outright.   
 
Additionally, Subsection 17.42.10(C)(8) identifies outdoor product display or storage of merchandise 
covering no more than 10 percent of the total retail sales area as an accessory use permitted outright. 
To increase the amount of permitted outdoor product display or storage of merchandise covering 
greater than 10 percent of the total retail sales area, the applicant is required to obtain approval of a 
Minor Conditional Use. The applicant has applied for a Minor Conditional Use for to increase the 
percentage of outdoor product display or storage of merchandise to 100 percent, further analysis of this 
request can be found within Chapters 17.42.20 and 17.68 of this report.  
 
17.42.20 MINOR CONDITIONAL USES AND CONDITIONAL USES  
 
RESPONSE: Outdoor product display or storage of merchandise covering greater than 10 percent of 
the total retail sales area is identified as a Minor Conditional Use within Subsection 17.42.20(A)(3). To 
be approved, an applicant is required to complete a Type II approval process and meet the regulations 
of Chapter 17.68 – Conditional Uses, which are represented within this staff report. Section 17.90.110 
states that if “a conflict exists between the requirements of Chapter 17.90 and any other code provision, 
Chapter 17.90 shall prevail.  
 
While Subsection 17.42.20(A)(3) provides the opportunity for a property owner to request an increase in 
outdoor display or storage of merchandise, Subsection 17.90.110(J) speaks to external storage and 
screening requirements associated with properties within the C-1 zone district. The intent of this section 

Page 32 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

7 

is to promote land use compatibility and aesthetics, particularly where development abuts public spaces. 
Subsection 17.90.110(J)(1) states that exterior storage of merchandise and/or materials, except as 
specifically authorized as a permitted accessory use, is prohibited.  
 
As described above, the C-1 zone district permits as an accessory use “outdoor display or storage of 
merchandise covering no more than 10% of the total retail sales area.” Therefore, 17.90.110(J)(1) in 
isolation would allow a modest 10% of outdoor storage on the site as that amount is “specifically 
authorized as a permitted accessory use” pursuant to 17.42.10(C)(8).  However, that is all that 
17.90.110(J)(1) would permit.  Any amount of storage beyond that modest 10% accessory threshold “is 
prohibited” under 17.90.110(J)(1). This is true despite the fact that the C-1 zone would allow storage 
exceeding 10% as a minor conditional use, as the applicant proposes here.   
 
There are two reasons for this. First, the C-1 zone district allowance for more than 10% outdoor 
storage through a conditional use process is in conflict with Chapter 17.90.110(J)(1).  Again, 
17.90.110(J)(1) prohibits outdoor storage “except as specifically authorized as a permitted accessory 
use.”  It does not say “or as may be authorized through a conditional use permit.”  As mentioned above, 
if there is a conflict between Chapter 17.90 and another section of the code (here, Chapter 17.42), the 
standard in Chapter 17.90 prevails. 
 
Second, under any reading of 17.90.110(J)(1), the storage an applicant seeks must be “accessory” to 
the primary permitted use of the site.  As it relates to this site-specific application, the applicant 
proposes the retail sales area on this site to consist of 100 percent outdoor storage.  On this site, the 
storage is not an accessory use but rather the primary, exclusive use the applicant proposes.    
 
For these reasons, the application for a minor conditional use should be denied. 
 
The above interpretation was completed based on the language of the code as written. According to the 
City Attorney when an inconsistency exists between criteria in a development code, courts will defer to a 
local government’s interpretation if it is “plausible” considering the express language of the relevant 
provisions and the purposes behind them. This standard recognizes that, in many cases, no single 
interpretation of inconsistent code provisions is correct to the exclusion of all other interpretations.  As 
such, the Planning Commission could consider another interpretation of 17.90.110(J), even if it is not 
necessarily the “most plausible.” 
 
In this case, the inconsistency involves the phrase “except as specifically authorized as a permitted 
accessory use” and the fact that any inconsistency is resolved in favor of Chapter 17.90’s criteria. Staff 
and the City Attorney believe that the most plausible interpretation is the one offered above: the code at 
17.42.10(C)(8) specifically authorizes outdoor storage not exceeding 10 percent as a permitted 
accessory use.  Therefore, pursuant to that interpretation, Section 17.90.110(J) prohibits outdoor 
storage exceeding 10 percent, as is the case in this application. 
 
However, another interpretation could be that the phrase “except as specifically authorized as a 
permitted accessory use” means not as code language specifically authorizes, but instead as the 
Planning Commission or City Council specifically authorize in a given case. Under that interpretation, 
the Planning Commission could specifically authorize outdoor storage in an amount that would exceed 
10 percent, assuming the Planning Commission otherwise believed that amount complied with other 
relevant criteria in Chapter 17.90. This interpretation finds some support in the fact that Chapter 
17.42.20(A)(3) allows storage in excess of 10 percent as a minor conditional use. 

Page 33 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

8 

 
17.42.30 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
 
Commercial 
Lot Area No minimum 
Lot Dimension No minimum 
Setbacks No minimum; maximum 10 ft. 
Lot Coverage No maximum 
Landscaping 10% minimum (includes required civic space 

in Section 17.90.110.) 
Structure Height 45 ft. maximum 
Off-Street Parking See Chapter 17.98 
Design Review Standards See Section 17.90.110 

 
RESPONSE: The proposal includes a Special Variance request to eliminate the required on-site 
building therefore no structures are proposed in association with the intended use, outdoor product 
display and storage of merchandise. The submitted updated landscape plan (Exhibit D, Sheet C3) 
(Exhibit N, Sheet C3) indicates the site will incorporate 10 percent (1,398 1,399 square feet) of 
landscaping on the site.  
 
CHAPTER 17.66 – ADJUSTMENTS AND VARIANCES 
 

17.66.60 VARIANCES 
 
Variances are a means of requesting a complete waiver or major adjustment to certain development 
standards. They may be requested for a specific lot or as part of a land division application. The Type II 
variance process is generally reserved for major adjustments on individual lots, while variances to 
development standards proposed as part of a land division are processed as a Type III application 
(requiring a public hearing). 
 
RESPONSE: The applicant has requested a Type III Special Variance from Subsection 17.90.110(D)(1) to 
eliminate the required 50 percent building frontage standard.  
 
17.66.80 TYPE III SPECIAL VARIANCES 
 
The Planning Commission may grant a special variance waiving a specified provision under the Type III 
procedure if it finds that the provision is unreasonable and unwarranted due to the specific nature of the 
proposed development.  In submitting an application for a Type III Special Variance, the proposed 
development explanation shall provide facts and evidence sufficient to enable the Planning Commission 
to make findings in compliance with the criteria set forth in this section while avoiding conflict with the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
One of the following sets of criteria shall be applied as appropriate. 
 
A. The unique nature of the proposed development is such that: 

1. The intent and purpose of the regulations and of the provisions to be waived will not be violated; 
and 

Page 34 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

9 

2. Authorization of the special variance will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare and 
will not be injurious to other property in the area when compared with the effects of development 
otherwise permitted. 

 
B. The variance approved is the minimum variance needed to permit practical compliance with a 

requirement of another law or regulation. 
 
C. When restoration or replacement of a nonconforming development is necessary due to damage by 

fire, flood, or other casual or natural disaster, the restoration or replacement will decrease the degree 
of the previous noncompliance to the greatest extent possible. 

 
Special Variance Request: 
 
Subsection 17.90.110(D)(1) requires each building to be oriented to a public street or civic space. This 
standard is met when at least 50 percent of the subject site’s street frontage is comprised of building(s) 
placed within 10 feet of a sidewalk or an approved civic space and not more than 20 percent of the off-
street parking on a parcel as required by SDC 17.98, tract or area of land is located between a building’s 
front façade and the adjacent street(s).    
 
Request: There do not appear to be any unique characteristics of the subject property that differ from 
neighboring properties and the site planning is of the applicant’s making so a Type II Variance request 
would have to be denied. Therefore, the applicant requests a Type III Special Variance to eliminate the 
building that 17.90.110(D)(1) requires in order to meet the frontage and orientation standards of this 
subsection.   
 
A. The unique nature of the proposed development is such that:  

1. The intent and purpose of the regulations and of the provisions to be waived will not be violated; 
and  

2. Authorization of the special variance will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare and 
will not be injurious to other property in the area when compared with the effects of development 
otherwise permitted.  

 
RESPONSE: As identified by the applicant within the submitted narrative (Exhibit C) and within 
Subsection 17.90.110(D) the intent of the building orientation is to maintain and enhance downtown 
and village commercial streetscapes as public spaces, emphasizing a pedestrian-scale and character 
in new development, consistent with the Sandy Style; and to provide for a continuous pedestrian 
network that promotes pedestrian safety, comfort and convenience, and provides materials and 
detailing consistent with the Sandy Style.  
 
Subsection 17.90.00 identifies objectives when evaluating Design reviews. Subsection 17.90.110(B) 
states an objective is to encourage aesthetically pleasing development. To support this objective 
17.90.00(C) identifies five guiding principles to Sandy Style. Of the five items, four (Items No. 1, 3, 4 
& 5) speak to building design, orientation, materials, landscaping, architectural style and/or building 
practices. Subsection 17.90.110(D) identifies elements incompatible with the Sandy Style and permits 
a reviewing body to deny, or require modifications to, a project when any of the items (1-11) 
identified within this subsection are found in a proposal.    

 

Page 35 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

10 

As identified within 17.42.10 of this report, the C-1 zone district requires a building associated with 
the retail sales of the recreational vehicle sales. Within the submitted narrative (Exhibit C) the 
applicant has identified the intended primary use of subject property is to be for “recreational vehicle 
parking and storage” for recreational vehicles. To accomplish this the proposal includes paving 90 
percent (12,586.5 square feet or .29 acres) of the site to use as a display area. Criteria 
17.90.00(D)(3) identifies that excessive surface parking lot paving is incompatible with Sandy Style. 
Additionally, Subsection 17.90.00(D)(11) identifies outdoor storage as incompatible with the Sandy 
Style. The incompatibility of the applicant’s proposal for outdoor storage is further supported by 
17.90.110(J)(1), as discussed above. 
 
The proposal includes incorporating a 5-foot wide planter strip along the east and south property 
lines/frontages with a 25.5-foot by 25.5-foot planter area located in the subject property’s southwest 
corner. Within these landscaping areas the proposal includes a total of 9 Dwarf Burning Bushes, 3 
J.PM. Rhododendrons, both proposed to be 5-gallon plantings as well as 5, 7-foot tall or 1.5-inch 
caliber Kousa Dogwood trees. The areas not occupied by these plantings will consist of Kinnikinic 
Groundcover and bark dust. In addition, the Landscape Plan (Exhibit N, Sheet C3) includes the 
installation of an ornamental fence. The proposed fence includes square column wraps at 
approximately 2-feet wide, standing 4-foot tall not including a 3-inch thick beveled concrete column 
cap. The proposed columns are to be wrapped with a stone veneer in Bucks County color which is 
consistent with the desired Sandy Style masonry standards for new development within the C-1 zone 
district. Between the columns the proposal includes installing two, horizontal trex rails (2-inch by 6-
inch) to complete an ornamental fence bordering the subject property. The proposed rails are 
proposed to be brown which is also in keeping with the Sandy Style. The applicant shall submit the 
proposed trex rail color for staff’s final approval. The proposed color shall be compatible with 
Appendix C, Building Color Palette or be of a natural stain/finish. Once approved the applicant 
shall update the plans to reflect the choice. In addition to the onsite landscape improvements the 
proposal includes closing an existing ingress/egress curb cut (vehicular entrance) on Proctor 
Blvd/US HWY 26 to include new curb, gutter, ground covering, a Chanticleer Pear tree and 
improved sidewalks while on Beers Ave. a new sidewalk system is proposed with new pavement and 
2, 48-inch squared tree wells each to include a Red Barron Crabapple tree at 7-feet tall or 1.5-inch 
caliber. Red Barron Crabapple are proposed within the Beers Ave. right-of-way which is an 
approved street tree, however staff recommends the applicant choose an alternative tree species 
that is not a fruit bearing tree in order to prevent safety concerns from falling fruit as well as to 
eliminate potential maintenance concern due to fruit splatter.  total of eight Red Twig Dogwood (5 
gallon) plants with native grass mix at 1-pound per 1,000 square feet within the areas not occupied 
by the proposed plants. Additionally, the proposal includes installing a 3-foot tall chain link fence 
dividing the proposed pavement and landscaped areas parallel to the west property line. The intent of 
the proposed landscaping and fencing is to define and enhance the visual appearance of the site. Staff 
finds the proposed landscaping provides a decent combination of trees, shrubs, and ground cover 
that softens appearance of the proposed off-street activity from the public street while enhancing the 
pedestrian environment and adding to the intended “village” scaled development. In addition to the 
landscaping, the proposed ornamental fence provides an additional element that softens the proposed 
use, outdoor product display or storage of merchandise, which assists in the development complying 
with the design regulations of Chapter 17.92. however, staff does not believe the proposed 
landscaping provides a combination of trees, shrubs, or evergreen ground cover that softens or 
screens the appearance of the proposed off-street activity from the public street which is required per 
the regulations of Chapter 17.92. Further analysis regarding landscaping and screening can be 
found within Chapter 17.92 of this report.   

Page 36 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

11 

 
Staff finds that eliminating the required building frontage and/or civic space required for the site 
would violate the intent and purpose of the requirement. In addition, the request to not have a 
building on the site does not emphasize the “Village” scale described in the guiding principles of 
Subsection 17.90.00(C). The removal of the required building eliminates the ability for the site to 
incorporate required Sandy Style elements and therefore does not support the guiding principles of 
Subsection 17.90.00(C). Eliminating the required building and/or civic space and permitting an 
increase in paved area to be used for outdoor storage is incompatible with Sandy Style per 
Subsections 17.90.00(D)(3) and 17.90.00(D)(11) and therefore is a basis for denial. Additionally, 
staff does not believe the proposed landscaping provides a combination of trees, shrubs, or evergreen 
ground cover that softens or screens the appearance of off-street parking areas/activity from the 
public street which is required per the regulations of Chapter 17.92 and addressed within the guiding 
principles of Subsection 17.90.00(C). As mentioned above, and within this report, staff finds the 
proposed landscaping provides a combination of trees, shrubs, and ground cover that softens 
appearance of the proposed off-street activity from the public street while enhancing the pedestrian 
environment and adding to the intended “village” scaled development which is required per the 
regulations of Chapter 17.92 and addressed within the guiding principles of Subsection 17.90.00(C). 
 

B. The variance approved is the minimum variance needed to permit practical compliance with a 
requirement of another law or regulation.  
 
RESPONSE: The requested variance is not necessary to comply with another law or regulation.  

 
C. When restoration or replacement of a nonconforming development is necessary due to damage by 

fire, flood, or other casual or natural disaster, the restoration or replacement will decrease the degree 
of the previous noncompliance to the greatest extent possible. 

 
RESPONSE: The proposal is not in association with the restoration or replacement of a 
nonconforming development due to damage by fire, flood, or other casual or natural disaster, the 
restoration.  

 
RECOMENDATION: The intent of the building orientation standard is to maintain and enhance 
downtown and village commercial streetscapes as public spaces, emphasizing a pedestrian-scale 
and character in new development, consistent with the Sandy Style; and to provide for a continuous 
pedestrian network that promotes pedestrian safety, comfort and convenience, and provides 
materials and detailing consistent with the Sandy Style.  
 
Staff finds the removal of the required building eliminates the ability for the site to incorporate 
required Sandy Style elements and therefore does not support the intent of the building orientation 
standard (Section 17.90.110(D)) or the guiding principles of Subsection 17.90.00(C). Specifically, 
removal of the required building does not emphasize a “village” scale as described in Subsection 
17.90.00(C)(3) nor does it allow for the expression of Cascadian architectural elements, as 
described in 17.90.00(C)(4) and therefore violates the intent of the Sandy Style requirement. In 
addition, eliminating the required building frontage required for the site and introducing additional 
pavement for outdoor product display or storage of material violates Subsections 17.90.00(D)(3) 
and 17.90.00(11), both of which are defined as incompatible with the Sandy Style and are 
considered grounds for denial. 
 

Page 37 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

12 

While the proposal includes landscaping to enhance and emphasize the pedestrian environment staff 
believes the landscaping does not meet the requirements of Chapter 17.92 therefore violating 
guiding principle 17.90.00(C)(1). Additionally, staff points out the request is not needed to comply 
with any other law or regulation and that granting the requested special variance effectively 
eliminates the property from having to incorporate many of the design elements identified within 
Chapter 17.90 further violating the intent of the requirement.  The proposed onsite and offsite 
landscaping provides a combination of trees, shrubs, and ground cover that softens appearance of 
the proposed off-street activity from the public street while enhancing the pedestrian environment 
and adding to the intended “village” scaled development which is required per the regulations of 
Chapter 17.92 and addressed within the guiding principles of Subsection 17.90.00(C). The proposal 
is not required to comply with any other law or regulation and granting the requested special 
variance effectively eliminates the property from having to incorporate many of the Sandy Style 
design elements identified within Chapter 17.90. 
 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission deny the requested special variance to eliminate the 
required building frontage required by Subsection 17.90.100(D)(1) as granting the request will 
eliminate the Sandy Style aesthetic sought through the principles and guidelines of Chapter 17.90 
Design Standards. Alternatively, should the Planning Commission choose to approve the requested 
variance staff finds the proposed landscaping provides a combination of trees, shrubs, and ground 
cover that softens appearance of the proposed off-street activity from the public street while 
enhancing the pedestrian environment and adding to the intended “village” scaled development. In 
addition to the landscaping, the proposed ornamental fence provides an additional element of 
screening of the proposed use, outdoor product display or storage of merchandise, which assists in 
the development complying with the design regulations of Chapter 17.92. 

 
CHAPTER 17.68 – CONDITIONAL USES 
 
17.68.00 INTENT  
 
Certain uses listed in each zoning district require special review to determine what their effects may be 
to the surrounding properties, neighborhood, and community as a whole. The Minor Conditional Use 
Permit (Type II) and Conditional Use Permit (Type III) processes provide an opportunity to allow a use 
when potential adverse effects can be mitigated or deny a use if concerns cannot be resolved.  
 
It is the intent of this chapter to permit minor conditional uses or conditional uses that are consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan, subject to procedures and criteria intended to mitigate potentially negative 
impacts.  
 
Procedures and review criteria for conditional development are established for the following purpose:  

A. Permit certain types of public and private development that provides a community service in 
locations related to their service areas. 

B. Permit commercial development in locations related to its service area. 
C. Ensure that a conditional use is compatible with its immediate area and the affected part of 

the community 
 
17.68.10 PROCEDURES 
 

Page 38 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

13 

The applicant submitted a formal application on July 10, 2018 and received an incompleteness notice on 
July 12, 2018 due to no pre-application meeting being held prior to submission. After two meetings were 
held with the applicant, August 15, 2018 and November 21, 2018, the City received a resubmitted 
application packet on February 7, 2019. The submission ultimately received confirmation of 
completeness on March 5, 2019 thus confirming the proposal has met the requirements of Subsection 
17.68.10.  
 
The complete proposal included multiple applications with varying review types (Type II and Type III) 
and the Planning Director chose to elevate all applications to the highest number procedure for review 
(Type III) per the allowance of Subsection 17.18.00. 
 
17.68.20 REVIEW CRITERIA  
 
The Planning Commission (Conditional Use Permit) through a Type III process may approve an 
application, approve with modifications, approve with conditions, or deny an application for a 
conditional use permit after a public hearing. The applicant must submit evidence substantiating that all 
requirements of this code relative to the proposed use are satisfied and consistent with the purposes of 
this chapter, policies of the Comprehensive Plan, and any other applicable policies and standards 
adopted by the City Council.  
 
The following criteria and compatibility factors shall be considered: 

A. The use is listed as either a minor conditional use or conditional use in the underlying zoning 
district or has been interpreted to be similar in use to other listed conditional uses. 

 RESPONSE: The subject property is zoned Central Business District (C-1). “Outdoor 
product display or storage of merchandise covering greater than 10% of the total retail sales 
area” is listed as a Minor Conditional Use within the C-1 zone district. However, the 
applicant must still demonstrate that “all the requirements of this code relative to the 
proposed use are satisfied.”  As discussed above and throughout this staff report, 
17.90.110(J)(1) ultimately prohibits outdoor storage covering more than 10 percent of this 
site. Section 17.90.110 states that if “a conflict exists between the requirements of Chapter 
17.90 and any other code provision, Chapter 17.90 shall prevail; therefore, the application 
should be denied based on the use limitation of 17.90.110(J)(1). 
  
The above interpretation was completed based on the language of the code as written. 
According to the City Attorney when an inconsistency exists between criteria in a 
development code, courts will defer to a local government’s interpretation if it is “plausible” 
considering the express language of the relevant provisions and the purposes behind them. 
This standard recognizes that, in many cases, no single interpretation of inconsistent code 
provisions is correct to the exclusion of all other interpretations.  As such, the Planning 
Commission could consider another interpretation of 17.90.110(J), even if it is not 
necessarily the “most plausible.” 
 
In this case, the inconsistency involves the phrase “except as specifically authorized as a 
permitted accessory use” and the fact that any inconsistency is resolved in favor of Chapter 
17.90’s criteria. Staff and the City Attorney believe that the most plausible interpretation is 
the one offered above: the code at 17.42.10(C)(8) specifically authorizes outdoor storage not 
exceeding 10 percent as a permitted accessory use.  Therefore, pursuant to that 

Page 39 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

14 

interpretation, Section 17.90.110(J) prohibits outdoor storage exceeding 10 percent, as is the 
case in this application. 
 

 However, another interpretation could be that the phrase “except as specifically authorized 
as a permitted accessory use” means not as code language specifically authorizes, but 
instead as the Planning Commission or City Council specifically authorize in a given case. 
Under that interpretation, the Planning Commission could specifically authorize outdoor 
storage in an amount that would exceed 10 percent, assuming the Planning Commission 
otherwise believed that amount complied with other relevant criteria in Chapter 17.90. This 
interpretation finds some support in the fact that Chapter 17.42.20(A)(3) allows storage in 
excess of 10 percent as a minor conditional use. 

  
B. The characteristics of the site are suitable for the proposed use considering the size, shape, 

location, topography, and natural features. 

 RESPONSE: The subject property is relatively flat with a minimum elevation change of 
approximately 7-feet between the southeast and northeast corners of the property lending 
itself suitable for the proposed use based on topography. The size and shape lend itself to 
accommodating the proposed use as the applicant has demonstrated the ability to plan the 
site accordingly to their needs. No natural features are observed on the subject property.  
  

 The subject property is located within the C-1 zone district which is intended to provide the 
community with a mix of retail, personal services, offices and residential needs of the 
community and its trade area in the city's traditional commercial core. A review of the 
permitted primary uses within Chapter 17.42.10 identifies that all commercial uses within the 
C-1 zone district are required to have a building associated with development while the 
permitted accessory use of outdoor display or storage of merchandise is limited to 10 percent 
of the retail sales area. In addition, the C-1 zone district is intended to provide the principal 
focus for civil and social functions within the community, which includes emphasizing a 
“village” scale development with Cascadian design elements to enhance the pedestrian 
experience. 
  
The proposal includes a request for a Special Variance (Chapter 17.66 of this report) to 
eliminate the required building and use the site for “recreational vehicle parking and 
storage.” Should the Minor Conditional Use be approved the applicant will pave 
approximately 90 percent (12,586.5 square feet or .29 acres) of the site to use as a display 
area for recreational vehicles. Criteria 17.90.00(D)(3) identifies that excessive surface 
parking lot paving is incompatible with Sandy Style. Additionally, Subsection 
17.90.00(D)(11) identifies outdoor storage as incompatible with the Sandy Style. 
 
While Subsection 17.92.110 exempts recreational vehicle sales from screening outdoor 
storage, Subsection 17.42.10(C)(8) limits outdoor product display of goods/merchandise to 
10 percent of the retail sales area within the C-1 zone district without obtaining a Minor 
Conditional Use. Comparing the two subsections it is interpreted that the proposed use of 
100 percent outdoor storage is incompatible with the C-1 zone district based on allowed uses 
within the base zone. Furthermore, Subsection 17.90.110(J)(1) strictly prohibits external 
storage of merchandise unless specifically authorized as a permitted accessory use. The 
applicant’s request is to have outdoor product display and storage as the sole (and therefore 

Page 40 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

15 

primary) use on the site and not as a permitted accessory use; therefore, the request must 
meet the requirements of Subsection 17.90.110(J)(1) unless the Planning Commission finds 
the alternative interpretation (Exhibit M) to be “plausible” in which case they may approve 
the proposal with or without conditions as they determine necessary to meet the overall 
intent of the code. 
 
The proposed elimination of the required building and increased pavement on site within the 
C-1 zone district eliminates the ability for the site to incorporate required Sandy Style 
elements and therefore is not suitable for the site as it relates to the overall intent and 
applicable requirements associated with neighboring properties. However, the adjacent 
property to the west is the existing location of the Funtime RV retail business and the subject 
property is intended to be an extension of that use, therefore the proposal is in keeping with 
the character of the adjacent property to the west. neighboring properties. Additionally, 
While Subsection 17.90.00(D)(3) identifies excessive surface parking lot paving as 
incompatible with Sandy Style, staff finds the proposal is in keeping with the character of the 
adjacent property to the west. and therefore grounds for denial.  
 

C. The proposed use is timely considering the adequacy of the transportation systems, public 
facilities and services existing or planned for the area affected by the use. 

RESPONSE: It is unlikely the proposed use, outdoor product display or storage of 
merchandise, will generate additional trips to the site and therefore analysis of traffic impact 
was not required of the applicant. The proposal does not include connecting to any public 
facilities except for the stormwater system. The proposed stormwater system will connect to 
the public line located near the corner of Pleasant Street and Beers Avenue. Due to the 
nature of the development the applicant does not propose making improvements to or 
connecting to water, sanitary sewer or fiber services. Staff finds this to be acceptable at this 
time and notes that any future development on this site will be required to meet the standards 
of Chapter 17.84.60.  

 
D. The proposed use will not alter the character of the surrounding area in a manner which 

substantially limits, precludes, or impairs the use of surrounding properties for the primary 
uses listed in the underlying zoning district. 

RESPONSE: All abutting parcels to the subject site are within City limits and are zoned 
Central Business District (C-1), which permits the same uses and requires the same site and 
building design regulations. The site is located towards the west end of Sandy’s downtown 
center. 

Adjacent properties are as follows: 

North Multi-Family Residential 

East Beers Avenue Right-of-Way 
Retail – Timberline Meat 

South Proctor Blvd./US HWY 26 Right-of-Way 
Eating/Drinking Establishment – Taco Time 

West Retail Sales – Funtime RV 

Page 41 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

16 

The proposed use is outdoor product display or storage of merchandise to be associated with 
the retail business located on the neighboring four properties, Funtime RV. As mentioned 
within Item B above, staff does not believe the proposed use creates an additional mix of use 
for the central business district. In addition, the proposed increased amount of pavement on 
site violates approval criteria 17.90.00(D)(3) as well as eliminates the ability for the site to 
incorporate required Sandy Style elements. In addition, Subsection 17.90.00(D)(11) indicates 
that visible outdoor storage is incompatible with Sandy Style. Therefore, staff concludes that 
the proposed use is not compatible with the intended surrounding uses and should be 
denied based on the interpretation of the written code.  

Alternatively, should the Planning Commission choose to follow the alternative 
interpretation (Subsection 17.68.20(A) and/or Exhibit M) staff finds the proposed 
landscaping and ornamental fence provides for a more enhanced pedestrian environment 
and adds to the intended “village” scaled development which is required per the regulations 
of Chapter 17.92 and addressed within the guiding principles of Subsection 17.90.00(C). 

E. The proposed use will not result in the use of land for any purpose which may create or cause 
to be created any public nuisance including, but not limited to, air, land, or water 
degradation, noise, glare, heat, vibration, or other considerations which may be injurious to 
the public health, safety, and welfare. 

RESPONSE: While the adjacent property to the west has historically been used as a 
recreational vehicle retailer and repair services since issued a Conditional Use permit in 
2009, the proposed use has the ability to add air, noise and glare pollutants on to 
neighboring properties due to the nature of the merchandise being sold. The west adjacent 
property is the existing Fun Time RV location, therefore it is reasonable to conclude they will 
not be negatively affected by the proposed use as well as the properties to the east and south 
as they are separated by right-of-way which generate additional noise, glare and pollution 
due to traffic. Both the existing and proposed sites will be directly adjacent south and west 
from a multi-family residential dwelling which has the ability to be most effected by vehicle 
discharge from the subject property. Should the Planning Commission choose to approve 
the Minor Conditional Use, staff recommends they include a condition for the site to 
include a 5-foot in depth landscape buffer to include evergreen plantings at a minimum of 
6-feet tall to be located the length of the north property line in order to create an additional 
buffer for the neighboring, north, residential development.     

F. The proposed use will be reasonably compatible with existing or planned neighboring uses 
based on review of the following: 
 
1. Basic site design (organization of uses on the site) 
RESPONSE: The proposal includes a variance to eliminate the required building associated 
with retail as well as increase the outdoor product display or storage of merchandise above 
the allowed maximum. This use in not compaitible with surrounding allowed uses in that it 
creates an excessive surface paving area which has been determined to be incompatible 
with the Sandy Style design per Subsection 17.90.00(D)(3) and is therefore grounds for 
denial. In addition, Subsection 17.90.00(D)(11) indicates that visible outdoor storage is 
incompatible with Sandy Style therefore it is concluded that the proposed use is not 
compatible with the intent of the code and should be denied or modified. In addition, 

Page 42 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

17 

17.90.110(J)(1) prohibits outdoor storage exceeding 10 percent of the site. Alternatively, 
should the Planning Commission find the alternative interpretation (17.68.20(A) and/or 
Exhibit M) to be “plausible”, they may approve the proposal with or without conditions as 
they determine necessary to meet the overall intent of the code.      
 
2. Visual elements (scale, structural design and form, materials, and so forth) 
RESPONSE: The proposal includes a request for a variance to eliminate the required 
building associated with retail as well as a request for a minor conditional use to increase 
the outdoor product display or storage of merchandise above the allowed maximum. By 
eliminating the required building, the proposal eliminates the ability to meet the building 
design elements of Chapter 17.90 and therefore the guiding principles of 17.90.00(C). As a 
result, the proposal creates an excessive surface paving area for the outdoor storage of 
recreational vehicles, which has been determined to be incompatible with the Sandy Style 
design per Subsections 17.90.00(D)(3) and 17.90.00(D)(11) and is therefore grounds for 
denial.    
 
The proposal includes 5-foot wide landscaping strips on the east and south property lines as 
well as a 25.5-foot by 25.5-foot planter area located in the subject property’s southwest 
corner. Within these landscaping areas the proposal includes native grass mixture 
throughout with a total of eight Red Twig Dogwood plants. Additionally, the proposal 
includes installing a 3-foot tall chain link fence dividing the proposed pavement and 
landscaped areas parallel to the west property line. The intent of the landscaping and 
fencing is to define and enhance the visual appearance of the site; however, staff does not 
believe the proposed landscaping provides a combination of trees, shrubs, or evergreen 
ground cover that softens or screens the appearance of the proposed off-street activity from 
the public street, which is required per the regulations of Chapter 17.92. Further analysis 
regarding landscaping and screening can be found within Chapter 17.92 of this report.  Staff 
finds the proposed landscaping provides a combination of trees, shrubs, and ground cover 
that softens the appearance of the proposed off-street activity from the public street while 
enhancing the pedestrian environment and adding to the intended “village” scaled 
development. In addition to the landscaping, the proposed ornamental fence provides an 
additional element of screening of the proposed use, outdoor product display or storage of 
merchandise, which assists in the development complying with the design regulations of 
Chapter 17.92. 
 
3. Noise 
RESPONSE: The proposal has minimal enhanced landscaping on the east and south 
property lines; however, due to the noise generated by Proctor Blvd./US HWY 26 and Beers 
Avenue it is unlikely that the proposed use will create any additional noise nuisance for these 
properties. Additionally, the adjacent property to the west is the existing site of Fun Time RV 
therefore it is reasonable to conclude they will not be negatively affected by noise. The 
adjacent property to the north is a multi-family residential development therefore it is 
reasonable to conclude the proposed use will increase noise permeating onto the property. 
Potential noise concerns include engine ignitions and/or idling, reversing indicators, 
mechanical equipment associated with recreation vehicles being stored as well as patron 
and/or employee discussions. While the recreational vehicles proposed to be stored onsite 
have the potential of creating additional noise to the site it also can soften some of the traffic 
noise generated by US HWY 26 to the adjacent residential development to the north. Should 

Page 43 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

18 

the Planning Commission choose to approve the Minor Conditional Use, staff 
recommends they include a condition for the site to include a 5-foot wide landscape buffer 
to include evergreen plantings at a minimum of 6-feet tall to be located the length of the 
north property line in order to create an additional buffer for the neighboring, residential 
development to the north.     
 
4. Noxious odors 
RESPONSE: The adjacent property to the west is the existing site of Fun Time RV therefore 
it is reasonable to conclude they will not be negatively affected by noxious odors. The 
properties to the east and south are separated from the subject property by right-of-way and 
are adjacent to US HWY 26 and Beers Avenue therefore it is reasonable to conclude that the 
proposed use will not have a substantial impact on them regarding noxious odors.  
 
The adjacent property to the north is a multi-family residential development therefore it is 
reasonable to conclude the proposed use will increase the amount of noxious odors 
permeating onto the property due to engine exhaust. Should the Planning Commission 
choose to approve the Minor Conditional Use, staff recommends they include a condition 
for the site to include a 5-foot wide landscape buffer to include evergreen plantings at a 
minimum of 6-feet tall to be located the length of the north property line in order to create 
an additional buffer for the neighboring, residential development to the north 
   
5. Lighting 
RESPONSE: The proposal includes exterior lighting of the parking lot. Detailed analysis of 
the proposed lighting can be found within Section 17.90.100(H) and Chapter 15.30 of this 
report.     
 
6. Signage 
RESPONSE: The applicant will be required to obtain a permit for any proposed signage.  

 
7. Landscaping for buffering and screening 
RESPONSE: The intent of the landscaping and fencing is to define and enhance the visual 
appearance of the site. The proposal includes the minimum landscaping requirements for the 
C-1 zone district (10 percent). The proposal includes 5-foot wide landscaping strips on the 
east and south property lines as well as a 25.5-foot by 25.5-foot planter area located in the 
subject property’s southwest corner. Within these landscaping areas the proposal includes a 
total of 9 Dwarf Burning Bushes, 3 J.PM. Rhododendrons, both proposed to be 5-gallon 
plantings as well as 5, 7-foot tall or 1.5-inch caliber Kousa Dogwood trees. The areas not 
occupied by these plantings will consist of Kinnikinic Groundcover and bark dust. In 
addition, the Landscape Plan (Exhibit N, Sheet C3) includes the installation of an 
ornamental fence. The proposed fence includes square column wraps at approximately 2-feet 
wide, standing 4-foot tall not including a 3-inch thick beveled concrete column cap. The 
proposed columns are to be wrapped with a stone veneer in Bucks County color which is 
consistent with the desired Sandy Style masonry standards for new development within the C-
1 zone district. Between the columns the proposal includes installing two, horizontal trex 
rails (2-inch by 6-inch) to complete an ornamental fence bordering the subject property. The 
proposed rails are proposed to be brown which is also in keeping with the Sandy Style. 
Should the proposed fencing be approved the applicant shall submit the proposed trex rail 
color for staff’s final approval. The proposed color shall be compatible with Appendix C, 

Page 44 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

19 

Building Color Palette or be of a natural stain/finish. Once approved the applicant shall 
update the plans to reflect the choice. In addition to the onsite landscape improvements the 
proposal includes closing an existing ingress/egress curb cut (vehicular entrance) on Proctor 
Blvd/US HWY 26 to include new curb, gutter, ground covering, a Chanticleer Pear tree and 
improved sidewalks while on Beers Ave. a new sidewalk system is proposed with new 
pavement and 2, 48-inch squared tree wells each to include a Red Barron Crabapple tree at 
7-feet tall or 1.5-inch caliber. Red Barron Crabapple are proposed within the Beers Ave. 
right-of-way which is an approved street tree, however staff recommends the applicant 
choose an alternative tree species that is not a fruit bearing tree in order to prevent safety 
concerns from falling fruit as well as to eliminate potential maintenance concern due to 
fruit splatter.  includes native grass mixture throughout with a total of eight Red Twig 
Dogwood plants. Additionally, the proposal includes installing a 3-foot tall chain link fence 
dividing the proposed pavement and landscaped areas parallel to the west property line. The 
chain-link fence includes a gate at the north end of the property for ingress/egress access.  
 
Staff finds the proposed landscaping provides a decent combination of trees, shrubs, and 
ground cover that softens appearance of the proposed off-street activity from the public 
street while enhancing the pedestrian environment and adding to the intended “village” 
scaled development. In addition to the landscaping, the proposed ornamental fence provides 
an additional element that softens the proposed use, outdoor product display or storage of 
merchandise, which assists in the development complying with the design regulations of 
Chapter 17.92. Staff does not believe the proposed landscaping provides a combination of 
trees, shrubs, or evergreen ground cover that softens or screens the appearance of the 
proposed off-street activity from the public street which is required per the regulations of 
Chapter 17.92. Further analysis regarding landscape and screening can be found within 
Chapter 17.92 of this report.  
 
Additionally, Subsection 17.90.110(J) speaks to external storage and screening requirements 
associated with properties within the C-1 zone district. The intent of this section is to 
promote land use compatibility and aesthetics, particularly where development abuts public 
spaces. Within this Chapter, Subsection 17.90.110(J)(1) states that exterior storage of 
merchandise and/or materials, except as specifically authorized as a permitted accessory 
use, is prohibited. The C-1 zone district permits “Outdoor display or storage of merchandise 
covering no more than 10% of the total retail sales area” as an accessory use; however, the 
proposed Minor Conditional Use is to have 100 percent outdoor display or storage of 
merchandise. While the property is being associated with the neighboring business it is being 
reviewed on its own merit resulting in the proposed use, outdoor product display or storage 
of merchandise, being the primary use of the property rather than accessory.  
 
Due to the requested outdoor display or storage of merchandise percentage the proposed 
use can not be classified as a permitted accessory use and therefore should be denied based 
on Subsection 17.90.110(J)(1). Alternatively, should the Planning Commission find the 
alternative interpretation (17.68.20(A) and/or Exhibit M) to be “plausible”, they may 
approve the proposal with or without conditions as they determine necessary to meet the 
overall intent of the code.  
 
8. Traffic 

Page 45 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

20 

RESPONSE: It is unlikely the proposed use, outdoor product display or storage of 
merchandise, will generate additional trips to the site and therefore analysis of traffic impact 
was not required of the applicant. 

 
9. Effects on off-street parking 
RESPONSE: The proposal should not adversely affect on-street or off-street parking 
capacity. The proposed use is outdoor product display or storage of merchandise to be 
associated with the retail business located on the neighboring four properties, Funtime RV, 
which has off-street parking to accommodate both patrons and employees of the business.  
Additional analysis of onsite parking has been detailed within Section 17.98 of this report.  
 
10. Effects on air quality and water quality 
RESPONSE: The proposed improvements has the ability to generate air and water 
pollutants due to vehicle discharge. The project shall comply with all applicable state and 
federal environmental standards.  

 
RECOMENDATION: The C-1 zone district is intended to provide the community with a mix of 
retail, personal services, offices and residential needs of the community and its trade area in the 
city's traditional commercial core. While intending on catering to the needs of stakeholders the C-1 
zone district is also intended to provide the principal focus for civil and social functions within the 
community. To support this intent Subsection 17.90.00(C) has identified a set of principles to 
support the civil and social functions of the community through the implementation of the Sandy 
Style aesthetic while Subsection 17.90.00(D) identifies elements that are incompatible with the 
Sandy Style which are cause for denial or modification.  
 
The proposed minor conditional use is to increase the percentage of outdoor product display or 
storage of merchandise to 100 percent to use the site in association with the adjacent property to the 
west, Funtime RV. Should the Minor Conditional Use be approved the applicant will pave 90 
percent (12,586.5 square feet or .29 acres) of the site to use as a display area for recreational 
vehicles. Criteria 17.90.00(D)(3) identifies that excessive surface parking lot paving is incompatible 
with Sandy Style. Additionally, Subsection 17.90.00(D)(11) identifies outdoor storage as 
incompatible with the Sandy Style. Furthermore, Subsection 17.90.110(J)(1) states that exterior 
storage of merchandise and/or materials, except as specifically authorized as a permitted accessory 
use, is prohibited. While the property is associated with the neighboring business it is being 
reviewed on its own merit resulting in the proposed use, outdoor product display or storage of 
merchandise, being the primary use of the property rather than accessory.  
 
Due to the approval criteria of Subsection 17.90.00(D)(3) and 17.90.00(D)(11), staff has 
determined the proposed use does not meet several of the conditional use criteria for approval. As 
detailed within this chapter, criterion B, D and F are not met due to the proposed use and 
associated development’s incompatibility with the surrounding uses and character as it relates to 
site design, visual elements, and landscaping provisions. In addition, 17.90.110(J)(1) prohibits 
outdoor storage exceeding 10 percent of the site; therefore, staff recommends the PC deny the 
minor conditional use as presented.   
 
However, another interpretation (Exhibit M) could be that the phrase “except as specifically 
authorized as a permitted accessory use” means not as code language specifically authorizes, but 
instead as the Planning Commission or City Council specifically authorize in a given case. Under 

Page 46 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

21 

that interpretation, the Planning Commission could specifically authorize outdoor storage in an 
amount that would exceed 10 percent, assuming the Planning Commission otherwise believed that 
amount complied with other relevant criteria in Chapter 17.90.  This interpretation finds some 
support in the fact that Chapter 17.42.20(A)(3) allows storage in excess of 10 percent as a minor 
conditional use.  
 
Should the Planning Commission choose to find the alternative interpretation (17.68.20(A) and/or 
Exhibit M) to be “plausible”, they may approve the proposal with or without conditions as they 
determine necessary to meet the overall intent of the code. Staff finds the proposed landscaping 
provides a combination of trees, shrubs, and ground cover that softens the appearance of the 
proposed off-street activity from the public street while enhancing the pedestrian environment and 
adding to the intended “village” scaled development. In addition to the landscaping, the proposed 
ornamental fence provides an additional element of screening of the proposed use, outdoor product 
display or storage of merchandise, which assists in the development complying with the design 
regulations of Chapter 17.92. 
 

 
CHAPTER 17.84 – IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED WITH DEVELOPMENT 
 
This chapter provides general information regarding improvements required in association with 
development, and it clarifies the timing, extent, and standards for public and private improvements. 
 
17.84.20 TIMING OF IMPROVEMENTS 
 

A. All improvements required by the standards in this chapter shall be installed concurrently with 
development, as follows: 

1. Where a land division is proposed, each proposed lot shall have required public and franchise 
utility improvements installed or financially guaranteed in accordance with the provisions of 
Chapter 17 prior to approval of the final plat. 

2. Where a land division is not proposed, the site shall have required public and franchise utility 
improvements installed or financially guaranteed in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 
17 prior to temporary or final occupancy of structures. 
 

RESPONSE: The submission does not include a proposed land division therefore the site shall have 
required public and franchise utility improvements installed or financially guaranteed in accordance 
with the provisions of Chapter 17 prior to temporary or final occupancy of structures. Preliminary 
approval does not connote utility or public improvements plan approval which will be reviewed 
and approved separately upon submittal of public improvement construction plans. 

 
17.84.30 PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLIST IMPROVEMENTS 
 
A. Sidewalks shall be required along both sides of all arterial, collector, and local streets, as follows: 

1. Sidewalks shall be a minimum of 5 ft. wide on local streets. The sidewalks shall be separated 
from curbs by a tree planting area that provides separation between sidewalk and curb, unless 
modified in accordance with Subsection 3 below. 

2. Sidewalks along arterial and collector streets shall be separated from curbs with a planting area, 
except as necessary to continue an existing curb-tight sidewalk. The planting area shall be 

Page 47 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

22 

landscaped with trees and plant materials approved by the City. The sidewalks shall be a 
minimum of 6 ft. wide. 

3.  Sidewalk improvements shall be made according to city standards, unless the city determines 
that the public benefit in the particular case does not warrant imposing a severe adverse impact to 
a natural or other significant feature such as requiring removal of a mature tree, requiring undue 
grading, or requiring modification to an existing building. Any exceptions to the standards shall 
generally be in the following order. 
a) Narrow landscape strips 
b) Narrow sidewalk or portion of sidewalk to no less than 4 feet in width 
c) Eliminate landscape strips 

d) Narrow on-street improvements by eliminating on-street parking 
e) Eliminate sidewalks 

4. The timing of the installation of sidewalks shall be as follows: 
a) Sidewalks and planted areas along arterial and collector streets shall be installed with street 

improvements, or with development of the site if street improvements are deferred. 
b) Sidewalks along local streets shall be installed in conjunction with development of the site, 

generally with building permits, except as noted in (c) below. 
c) Where sidewalks on local streets abut common areas, drainageways, or other publicly owned 

or semi-publicly owned areas, the sidewalks and planted areas shall be installed with street 
improvements. 

 
RESPONSE: This proposal indicates that Beers Avenue will include an eight-foot wide curb-tight 
sidewalk with street trees in 48” x 48” tree wells 30 feet on center. The applicant shall update the 
plans to included brick paver strips and scoring pattern matching the existing sidewalks in the 
Urban Renewal Area along Beers Avenue. The existing curb cut on Proctor is not in use and has 
been abandoned for some time therefore the curb cut shall be eliminated and replaced with 
standard Type C curb per 17.100.90(C) SMC.  
 
Per ODOT requirements (Exhibit I) the applicant shall install metal tube supports and signs per 
ODOT Standard Drawing TM490, Crosswalk Closure Detail (Exhibit I) on both the north and 
south sides of the west leg of Proctor Blvd./US HWY 26 and Beers Avenue.  
 
The applicant shall update and submit plans indicating all of Proctor Blvd. frontage includes a 
six-foot wide sidewalk adjacent to the property line with the remaining right-of-way developed as a 
planter strip with approved street trees 30 feet on center per 17.84.30(A)2 SMC. 
 
Additionally, this proposal includes upgrading the existing ADA ramp located at the northwest 
corner of the Proctor/US HWY 26 and Beers Avenue intersection. The ADA ramp shall be replaced 
with ADA-compliant ramps and the new curb return transition to the improvements on Beers 
Avenue shall mirror the existing curb extension on the east side of Beers Avenue.  
 
Street tree analysis has been completed and is documented within Section 17.92 of this report.   
 

B. Safe and convenient pedestrian and bicyclist facilities that strive to minimize travel distance to the 
extent practicable shall be provided in conjunction with new development within and between new 
subdivisions, planned developments, commercial developments, industrial areas, residential areas, 
public transit stops, school transit stops, and neighborhood activity centers such as schools and 
parks, as follows: 

Page 48 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

23 

1. For the purposes of this section, “safe and convenient” means pedestrian and bicyclist facilities 
that: are reasonably free from hazards which would interfere with or discourage travel for short 
trips; provide a direct route of travel between destinations; and meet the travel needs of 
pedestrians and bicyclists considering destination and length of trip. 

2. To meet the intent of “B” above, right-of-ways connecting cul-de-sacs or passing through 
unusually long or oddly shaped blocks shall be a minimum of 15 ft. wide with 8 feet of 
pavement.  

3. 12 feet wide pathways shall be provided in areas with high bicycle volumes or multiple use by 
bicyclists, pedestrians, and joggers. 

4. Pathways and sidewalks shall be encouraged in new developments by clustering buildings or 
constructing convenient pedestrian ways. Pedestrian walkways shall be provided in accordance 
with the following standards: 
a) The pedestrian circulation system shall be at least five feet in width and shall connect the 

sidewalk on each abutting street to the main entrance of the primary structure on the site to 
minimize out of direction pedestrian travel. 

b) Walkways at least five feet in width shall be provided to connect the pedestrian circulation 
system with existing or planned pedestrian facilities which abut the site but are not adjacent 
to the streets abutting the site. 

c) Walkways shall be as direct as possible and avoid unnecessary meandering. 
d) Walkway/driveway crossings shall be minimized. Internal parking lot design shall maintain 

ease of access for pedestrians from abutting streets, pedestrian facilities, and transit stops. 
e) With the exception of walkway/driveway crossings, walkways shall be separated from 

vehicle parking or vehicle maneuvering areas by grade, different paving material, painted 
crosshatching or landscaping. They shall be constructed in accordance with the sidewalk 
standards adopted by the City. (This provision does not require a separated walkway system 
to collect drivers and passengers from cars that have parked on site unless an unusual parking 
lot hazard exists). 

f) Pedestrian amenities such as covered walk-ways, awnings, visual corridors and benches will 
be encouraged. For every two benches provided, the minimum parking requirements will be 
reduced by one, up to a maximum of four benches per site. Benches shall have direct access 
to the circulation system. 

 
RESPONSE:  The proposal includes sidewalk infrastructure that meets the dimensional standards 
of the code. The site includes a gate located within the northeast portion the property. The 
ingress/egress of this access point has the potential to create conflict between pedestrians and 
vehicle access into the site at this location. The applicant shall complete one of the following 
options: 
 

A. A gate is proposed at the proposed Beers Ave. driveway approach to the sales lot. The 
proposed driveway throat shall be deep enough to allow an RV and tow vehicle to pull 
into the site without interfering with traffic on Beers Ave. or blocking the sidewalk, or 

B. A gate is proposed at the entrance to the sales lot. In order to prevent an RV and tow 
vehicle entering or exiting the site from interfering with traffic on Beers Ave. or 
blocking the sidewalk the gate shall be motorized and remotely operated to allow 
entrance and exit to and from the approach without stopping in the public right-of-
way.  

 

Page 49 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

24 

In order to provide safety for pedestrians the applicant shall demonstrate compliance with street 
frontage improvements including lighting and storm drainage per 17.84.80 (G) SMC upon 
submission of construction plans. Detailed analysis of the proposed pedestrian and bicyclist 
improvements shall be completed during the construction plans review process.   

 
17.84.40 TRANSIT AND SCHOOL BUS TRANSIT REQUIREMENTS 
 
A. Development sites located along existing or planned transit routes shall, where appropriate, 

incorporate bus pull-outs and/or shelters into the site design. These improvements shall be installed 
in accordance with the guidelines and standards of the transit agency. School bus pull-outs and/or 
shelters may also be required, where appropriate, as a condition of approval for a residential 
development of greater than 50 dwelling units where a school bus pick-up point is anticipated to 
serve a large number of children. 

 
B. New developments at or near existing or planned transit or school bus transit stops shall design 

development sites to provide safe, convenient access to the transit system, as follows: 
1. Commercial and civic use developments shall provide a prominent entrance oriented towards 

arterial and collector streets, with front setbacks reduced as much as possible to provide access 
for pedestrians, bicycles, and transit. 

2. All developments shall provide safe, convenient pedestrian walkways between the buildings and 
the transit stop, in accordance with the provisions of 17.84.30 B. 

 
RESPONSE:  The site is located within the Central Business District (C-1) of the City and is near 
the existing SAM Transit Station available to the public. With improved sidewalk and crossing 
infrastructure, staff does not believe the proposal warrants any additional amenities or additional 
improvements.    

 
17.84.50 STREET REQUIREMENTS 
 
A. Traffic evaluations may be required of all development proposals in accordance with the following: 

1. A proposal establishing the scope of the traffic evaluation shall be submitted for review to the 
City Engineer. The evaluation requirements shall reflect the magnitude of the project in 
accordance with accepted traffic engineering practices. Large projects should assess all nearby 
key intersections. Once the scope of the traffic evaluation has been approved, the applicant shall 
present the results with and an overall site development proposal. If required by the City 
Engineer, such evaluations shall be signed by a Licensed Professional Civil Engineer or Licensed 
Professional Traffic Engineer licensed in the State of Oregon. 

2. If the traffic evaluation identifies level-of-service conditions less than the minimum standard 
established in the Transportation System Plan, improvements and funding strategies mitigating 
the problem shall be considered concurrent with a development proposal. 

 
RESPONSE: It is unlikely the proposed use, outdoor product display or storage of merchandise, 
will generate additional trips to the site and therefore analysis of traffic impact was not required of 
the applicant. 
 

D. Development sites shall be provided with access from a public street improved to City standards in 
accordance with the following: 

Page 50 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

25 

1. Where a development site abuts an existing public street not improved to City standards, the 
abutting street shall be improved to City standards along the full frontage of the property 
concurrent with development. 

2. Half-street improvements are considered the minimum required improvement. Three-quarter-
street or full-street improvements shall be required where traffic volumes generated by the 
development are such that a half-street improvement would cause safety and/or capacity 
problems. Such a determination shall be made by the City Engineer. 

3. To ensure improved access to a development site consistent with policies on orderly urbanization 
and extension of public facilities the Planning Commission or Director may require off-site 
improvements concurrent with development. Off-site improvement requirements upon the site 
developer shall be reasonably related to the anticipated impacts of the development. 

4. Reimbursement agreements for ¾ street improvements (i.e., curb face to curb face) may be 
requested by the developer per Chapter 12 of the SMC. 

5.  A ½ street improvement includes curb and pavement 2 feet beyond the center line of the right-of-
way. A ¾ street improvement includes curbs on both sides of the side and full pavement between 
curb faces. 

 
RESPONSE: The proposed street network adjacent to the subject property’s east frontage is 
proposed to be improved and detailed analysis of the existing right-of-way infrastructure shall be 
submitted and reviewed during the construction plans review process. The proposal includes a gate 
located within the northeast portion the property. The ingress/egress of this access point has the 
potential to create conflict between pedestrians and vehicle access into the site at this location. The 
applicant shall complete one of the following options: 
 

A. A gate is proposed at the proposed Beers Ave. driveway approach to the sales lot. The 
proposed driveway throat shall be deep enough to allow an RV and tow vehicle to pull into 
the site without interfering with traffic on Beers Ave. or blocking the sidewalk, or 

B. A gate is proposed at the entrance to the sales lot. In order to prevent an RV and tow 
vehicle entering or exiting the site from interfering with traffic on Beers Ave. or blocking 
the sidewalk the gate shall be motorized and remotely operated to allow entrance and exit 
to and from the approach without stopping in the public right-of-way.  

 
Per ODOT review (Exhibit I) the applicant shall close the access (i.e. curb cut) to Proctor 
Blvd./US HWY 26 and replace with curb and sidewalk to ODOT and ADA Standards. In addition, 
the applicant shall record a cross access easement to the adjacent properties with state highway 
frontage with the County Assessor to facilitate shared access. Any work to be completed within the 
highway right-of-way (Proctor Blvd./US HWY 26) requires an ODOT Miscellaneous Permit to be 
completed, including tree planting.  

 
17.84.60 PUBLIC UTILITY EXTENSIONS 
 
A. All development sites shall be provided with public water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage. 
B. Where necessary to serve property as specified in “A” above, required public utility installations 

shall be constructed concurrent with development. 
C. Off-site public utility extensions necessary to fully serve a development site and adjacent properties 

shall be constructed concurrent with development. 

Page 51 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

26 

D. As necessary to provide for orderly development of adjacent properties, public utilities installed 
concurrent with development of a site shall be extended through the site to the edge of adjacent 
property(ies). 

E. All public utility installations required with development shall conform to the City’s facilities master 
plans. 

F. Private on-site sanitary sewer and storm drainage facilities may be considered provided all the 
following conditions exist: 
1. Extension of a public facility through the site is not necessary for the future orderly development 

of adjacent properties; 
2. The development site remains in one ownership and land division does not occur (with the 

exception of land divisions that may occur under the provisions of 17.84.50 F above); 
3. The facilities are designed and constructed in accordance with the Uniform Plumbing Code and 

other applicable codes, and permits and/or authorization to proceed with construction is issued 
prior to commencement of work. 

 
RESPONSE:  The proposal does not include connecting to any public facilities with the exception of 
stormwater system to the public line located near the corner of Pleasant Street and Beers Avenue. 
Due to the nature of the development the applicant does not propose making improvements to or 
connecting to water, sanitary sewer or fiber services for the subject site. Staff finds this to be 
acceptable at this time and notes that any future development on this site will be required to meet the 
standards of Chapter 17.84.60.  

 
CHAPTER 17.90 – Design Standards 
 
17.90.00 INTENT 
 

RESPONSE: This section of Chapter 17.90 details the objectives, guidelines, consideration and 
incompatible criteria associated with development within the City of Sandy as it pertains to the 
Design Reviews. The proposal includes a Type II Design review which has been elevated to a Type 
III by the Planning Director per the allowance of Subsection 17.18.00. Staff finds this chapter an 
integral part of the Design Review process as it details the specific requirements associated with 
individual zone districts to ensure the intent of the zone district implementation of the Sandy Style is 
achieved. Additional analysis with regards to the proposed use/development and its compatibility 
with the required design standards can be found within Chapters 17.66 and 17.68 of this report.   

 
17.90.10 APPLICABILITY 
 
The provisions of this chapter apply to all zones and uses as follows except as specified in Sections 
17.90.10(B), (C), (D), (E), and (F) below:  
 
A. All construction within a Commercial or Industrial Zoning District or a non-residential use in a 

Residential Zoning District including the following:  
 
1. New construction;  
2. Replacement of a building that is destroyed as specified in Section 17.08.30;  
3. Addition to an existing building;  
4. Exterior alterations other than general maintenance on an existing building;  
5. Site improvements including changes to landscaping, parking, civic spaces, etc. 

Page 52 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

27 

 
RESPONSE: The proposal includes site improvements with regards to landscaping and pavement 
for the outdoor display or storage of merchandise therefore the standards of Chapter 17.90 apply to 
the subject property. The submitted narrative (Exhibit C) explains that “because the proposal is 
limited in scope and does not include construction or renovation of a building, the majority of code 
standards in this Chapter are not applicable and have not been addressed in the narrative.” 
 
While the proposal has requested a Special Variance to eliminate the required building, it is 
important for analysis of the code to be completed to ensure the intent of Chapter 17.90 is met.  

 
17.90.110 DOWNTOWN AND VILLAGE COMMERCIAL (C-1 AND C-3) DESIGN 
STANDARDS  

Development in the C-1 and C-3 districts shall conform to all of the following standards, as applicable. 
Where a conflict exists between the requirements of this Chapter and any other code provision, this 
Chapter shall prevail.  

RESPONSE: The subject property is located within the C-1 zone district.  

A. Site Layout and Vehicle Access  

Intent: To provide for compact, walkable development, and to design and manage vehicle access and 
circulation in a manner that supports pedestrian safety, comfort and convenience. (Figures 17.90.110-C 
and 17.90.110-D)  

1. All lots shall abut or have cross access to a dedicated public street. RESPONSE: The subject 
property abuts Proctor Blvd./US HWY 26 and Beers Avenue. 

2. All lots that have access to a public alley shall provide for an additional vehicle access from that 
alley. RESPONSE: N/A 

3. Off-street parking shall be located to the rear or side of buildings with no portion of the parking 
lot located within required setbacks or within 10-feet of the public right-of-way, as shown in 
Figure 17.90.110(C). When access must be provided directly from a public right-of-way, 
driveways for ingress or egress shall be limited to one per 150 ft. For lots with frontage of less 
than 150 ft. or less, shared access may be required. RESPONSE: The proposal does not include 
additional parking and has requested a Special Variance to eliminate the required building. 
Further analysis regarding the requested variance can be found within Chapter 17.66 of this 
report.  

4. Adjacent parking lots shall be connected to one another when the City determines it is 
practicable to do so. Developments shall avoid creating barriers to inter-parcel circulation. 
RESPONSE: The subject property and the adjacent property to the west, Fun tTime RV, will 
remain under the same ownership and function as one site. The proposal includes paving the 
subject property to the west property line where an approximate 27 feet wide access way, located 
in the southern portion of the site, will allow for cross access/circulation between the properties.   

5. Urban design details, such as raised or painted pedestrian crossings and similar devices 
incorporating changes in paving materials, textures or color, shall be used to calm traffic and 
protect pedestrians in parking areas. RESPONSE: The proposal does not include interior 
pedestrian or civic space.  

Page 53 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

28 

6. Where openings occur between buildings facing Proctor Boulevard or Pioneer Boulevard, 
pedestrian ways shall connect the street sidewalk to any internal parking areas. Development 
shall avoid creating barriers to pedestrian circulation. RESPONSE: The proposal includes a 
Special Variance request to eliminate the required on-site building. 

7. Parking lots may include public alley accessed garages at the rear property line, except where a 
setback is required for vision clearance or to conform to other city standards. RESPONSE: N/A 

8. Raised walkways or painted crossings from the public street sidewalk to the building entrance(s) 
are required. Crosswalks through parking lots and drive aisles shall be constructed of a material 
contrasting with the road surface or be painted (e.g., colored concrete inlay in asphalt). 
RESPONSE: The proposal includes a Special Variance request to eliminate the required on-site 
building. 

9. Joint use of access points and interconnections and cross-over easements between parcels shall 
be required, where the City determines it is practicable and necessary. A development approval 
may be conditioned to require a joint use access easement and interconnecting driveways or 
alleys to comply with access spacing and other applicable code requirements. RESPONSE: As 
detailed in Item No. 4 above, the subject property and the adjacent property to the west, Fun 
Time RV, will remain under the same ownership and function as one site. The proposal includes 
paving the subject property to the west property line where an approximate 27 feet wide access 
way, located in the southern portion of the site, will allow for cross access/circulation between 
the properties. The applicant has expressed the belief that a cross-over easement does not make 
sense for the site. Due to the fact that both properties are under the same ownership and the 
proposal is intended on being an extension of the Fun Time RV business, staff does not believe a 
cross-over easement is necessary at this time. 

10. Connection to Adjacent Properties: The location of any real improvements to the property must 
provide for a future street and pedestrian connection to adjacent properties where the City 
determines this is practicable and necessary. RESPONSE: No future street concept required for 
this proposal. 

11. Through lots and corner lots may be permitted with two access points, one onto each abutting 
street, where necessary to serve a centralized, shared parking facility. Such access points must 
conform to the above access spacing requirements and parking must be internalized to the 
property. RESPONSE: The proposal includes one access point that will serve as a secondary 
access point with a gate to eliminate the ability for continuous traffic at this location.  

12. Free-standing buildings shall be connected to one another with a seamless pedestrian network 
that provides access to building entrances and civic spaces. RESPONSE: The proposal has 
requested a Special Variance to eliminate the required building. Further analysis regarding the 
requested variance can be found within Chapter 17.66 of this report. 

B. Building Facades, Materials, and Colors  

Intent: To provide building façades, materials and colors consistent with the Sandy Style. For purposes 
of interpreting the Sandy Style, representative illustrations and photos are provided. (Figures 17.90.110-
C, 17.90.110-D, 17.90.110-E, 17.90.110-F, 17.90.110-G, 17.90.110-H, 17.90.110-I, Color Palettes 
(Appendices C and D), and photos (Appendix E)  

1. Articulation. The Sandy Style includes asymmetrical building forms, which by definition require 
buildings to be articulated, varied, and provide visual interest. This standard is met by dividing 
elevations of a structure visible from an abutting public street or pedestrian way into smaller areas or 
planes to minimize the appearance of bulk as viewed from the street as follows:  

Page 54 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

29 

a. All elevations visible from an abutting public street or pedestrian way shall be divided into distinct 
planes no more than 30 lineal feet long to include the following:  

1. Wall planes meeting this standard shall include a feature or variation in the wall plane that 
projects or recedes at least six (6) inches from the adjacent plane, for a length of at least four (4) 
feet. Changes in plane may include but are not limited to recessed entries, bays, secondary roof 
forms (e.g., gables, lower roof sheds, dormers and towers), canopies, awnings, projections, 
recesses, alcoves, pergolas, porticos, roof overhangs, or other features consistent with the Sandy 
Style. 

2. Wall planes shall incorporate at least one visually contrasting and complementary change in 
materials or changes in texture or patterns, including trim, moldings, or other ornamental 
devices.  

3. The lower and upper floors of multi-story buildings shall be clearly delineated by using 
pedestrian shelters, change in siding materials, heavy timber or natural wood accents (e.g., 
brackets, paneling or other detailing).  

RESPONSE: The proposal has requested a Special Variance to eliminate the required building. As 
a result the proposal will not incorporate articulate façade to create a varying visual interest for the 
pedestrian environment.   

2. Pedestrian Shelters. Buildings must incorporate pedestrian shelters, as follows:  

RESPONSE: The proposal has requested a Special Variance to eliminate the required building 
therefore does not include pedestrian shelters.  

3. Building Materials. Exterior building materials shall convey an impression of strength and durability 
consistent with the Sandy Style, as follows:  

a. Buildings on the same site shall be architecturally unified. This provision shall apply to new 
construction, additions, and remodeling such that buildings are related in architectural style and 
share some common elements, such as color scheme, materials, roof forms, and/or detailing. 
Unity does not mean repetition or mirroring of building elevations.  

b. Strong base materials such as natural stone (e.g., basalt, granite, river stone), split- faced 
rusticated concrete block, or brick are required. Cultured stone may be allowed if it has a stone 
texture and is similar in appearance and durability to natural stone. A building’s base must 
extend at least 36 inches but not more than 60 inches above the adjacent finished grade and be 
included on those sides of the building visible from the abutting public street. If the site contains 
a grade differential making construction of a minimum 36-inch base impracticable, the reviewing 
body may allow portions of the base to be less than 36-inches.  

c. Foundations shall be designed to match the scale of the building being supported. Examples 
include sheathing the foundation structure with base materials and wall siding.  

d. Siding shall consist of wood, composite-wood (e.g., concrete fiberboard, panels or shingles), 
stone, brick, split-faced or rusticated concrete block, or a combination of these materials. Stucco, 
synthetic stucco, and metal are permitted only as specified below. Vinyl, plastic or similar siding 
is not permitted.  

Page 55 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

30 

1) Where wood siding is used, it shall consist of horizontal (e.g., lap, v-groove, or tongue-and-
groove) siding, vertical (board and batten) siding, shingles, or combinations thereof. 
Vertical grooved (i.e., T1-11) sheet siding and similar materials are prohibited.  

2) Where board-and-batten siding is used, battens shall be a minimum of 2-inches wide x 1-
inch deep and spaced 24 inches apart or closer; rough-sawn boards (specialty panel) are 
preferred over panels having a resin overlay.  

3) Where masonry siding is used, it shall consist of brick, stone, or rusticated concrete block, 
and must incorporate decorative patterns over not less than 15 percent of every elevation 
where it is used. Examples of decorative patterns include multi-toned masonry units, such 
as brick, stone, or cast stone, in layered or geometric patterns or split-faced concrete block 
to simulate rusticated stone-type construction. Changes in pattern should be used to 
accentuate breaks in building stories, corners, windows, structural bays, and building tops 
(e.g., parapets where flat roofs are allowed).  

4) Where metal siding is used, it shall be used as an accent only, comprising not more than 20 
percent of the surface area of the building elevation (e.g., wainscoting or other accent 
paneling). Metal must be architectural grade and have a non-reflective (burnished or 
painted) finish conforming to the approved Color Palette. Metal may also be used for 
flashing, gutters, downspouts, brackets, lighting, and signage and similar functional 
elements.  

5) Where stucco or synthetic stucco is used, it shall be used as an accent only, comprising not 
more than 20 percent of the surface area of the building elevation.  

a. Building elevations facing a public right-of-way or civic space shall incorporate at least three (3) 
of the following features: Using these features may also address other code requirements, such as 
those related to building articulation, change in relief, pedestrian shelters, and storefront 
elements.  

1. Exposed, heavy timbers;  
2. Exposed natural wood color beams, posts, brackets and/or trim (e.g., eaves or trim around 

windows);  
3. Natural wood color shingles (e.g., used as siding or to accent gable ends);  
4. Metal canopies;  
5. Heavy metal brackets (e.g., cast iron or similar appearance), which may be structural 

brackets or applied as cosmetic detailing; and,  
6. Similar features, consistent with the Sandy Style.  

b. Materials required on elevations visible from an abutting public street must turn the building 
corner and incorporate appropriate transitions onto elevations not requiring these materials for a 
distance of not less than two (2) feet.  

RESPONSE: The proposal has requested a Special Variance to eliminate the required building. 
Guiding principles of Subsection 17.90.00(C) call for expression of Cascadian architectural 
elements into new buildings with the intention of celebrating Sandy as well as emphasizing a 
“village” scale and character in new development. Additionally, Subsection 17.90.00(D)(7) has 
identified that “building materials or colors that do not conform to this code (Chapter 17.90)” are 
incompatible with Sandy Style and may be denied or required to be modified. Staff has determined 
that eliminating the building, and therefore not incorporating the required building materials and 
colors, would violate the above-mentioned guiding principle as well as Subsection 17.90.00(D)(7) 

Page 56 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

31 

which is grounds for denial; however, the proposal includes incorporating enhanced landscaping 
and an ornamental fence along the south and east street frontages to enhance the pedestrian 
environment and help create the “village” scaled atmosphere Chapter 17.90 seeks to achieve 
which is a factor when determining whether the proposal meets the intent of the design standards.     

4. Colors. Building exteriors shall comply with the following standards:  

a) Permitted colors include warm earth tones (tans, browns, reds, grays and greens) conforming to 
the Color Palette provided in Appendix C.  

b) High-intensity primary colors, metallic colors and black, may be utilized as trim and detail colors 
only, not to exceed one (1) percent of the surface area of any elevation. Such color shall not be 
used as primary wall colors.  

c) Day-glow colors, highly reflective colors, and similar colors are not permitted.  

RESPONSE: The proposal has requested a Special Variance to eliminate the required building. 
Guiding principles of 17.90.00(C) call for the incorporation of Cascadian architecture into new 
buildings and exterior remodels. Additionally, Subsection 17.90.00(D)(7) has identified that 
“building materials or colors that do not conform to this code (Chapter 17.90)” are incompatible 
with Sandy Style and may be denied or required to be modified. Staff has determined that 
eliminating the building, and therefore not incorporating the required building materials and colors, 
would violate the above-mentioned guiding principle as well as be incompatible with Subsection 
17.90.00(D)(7) which is may be grounds for denial. 

The proposal includes the incorporation of an ornamental fence along the south and east street 
frontages to enhance the pedestrian environment and help create the “village” scaled atmosphere. 
The proposed ornamental fence includes square columns at approximately 2-feet wide, standing 4-
foot tall not including a 3-inch thick beveled concrete column cap. The proposed fence includes 
square column wraps at approximately 2-feet wide, standing 4-foot tall not including a 3-inch thick 
beveled concrete column cap. The proposed columns are to be wrapped with a stone veneer in Bucks 
County color which is consistent with the desired Sandy Style masonry standards for new 
development within the C-1 zone district. Between the columns the proposal includes installing two, 
horizontal trex rails (2-inch by 6-inch) to complete an ornamental fence bordering the subject 
property. The proposed rails are proposed to be brown which is also in keeping with the Sandy 
Style. Should the proposed fencing be approved the applicant shall submit the proposed trex rail 
color for staff’s final approval. The proposed color shall be compatible with Appendix C, Building 
Color Palette or be of a natural stain/finish. Once approved the applicant shall update the plans to 
reflect the choice. Staff has determined that by incorporating the proposed fencing with Sandy Style 
materials and colors the proposal provides compatible Canadian design elements that ultimately 
meet the intent of this section of the code and can be granted at this time.   

C. Roof Pitch, Materials, and Parapets  

Intent: To provide roof forms and detailing consistent with the Sandy Style. For purposes of interpreting 
the Sandy Style, representative illustrations and photos are provided. (See Figures 17.90.110-C, 
17.90.110-D, 17.90.110-E, 17.90.110-F, 17.90.110-G, 17.90.110-H, 17.90.110-I and representative 
photos in Appendix E)  

Page 57 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

32 

1) Except as provided in subsections 17.90.110(C)(8), below, pitched (gabled or hipped) roofs are 
required on all new buildings with a span of 50-feet or less. Gable and hipped roof forms must 
achieve a pitch not less than the following:   

Zoning District Primary Roof Forms 
(Minimum) 

Secondary Roof Forms 
(minimum) 

C-1, C-3 6:12 4:12 

2) As provided above, “Primary Roof Forms” are those that individually comprise 20 percent or 
more of the total surface area of a roof elevation. Secondary roof forms (e.g., dormers, towers, 
cupolas, etc.) are those that comprise less than 20 percent of the roof elevation. See also, Section 
17.74.20 Vertical Projections.   

3) When practicable, buildings shall be oriented so the gable end of the roof faces the abutting 
street.   

4) Pitched roof surfaces visible from an abutting public street shall provide a secondary roof form 
(e.g. dormer) in the quantity specified below. Secondary roof forms may be located anywhere on 
the roof, although grouping these features is preferred.   

Roof Length  Number of Secondary Roof Forms  

30 – 40 feet  1  

41 – 80 feet  2  

81 feet and greater  4  

5) Visible roof materials must be wood shingle or architectural grade composition shingle, slate, or 
concrete tile. Metal with standing or batten seam may also be used conforming to the Color 
Palette in Appendix D.   

6) All roof and wall-mounted mechanical, electrical, communications, and service equipment, 
including satellite dishes and vent pipes, shall be screened from view from public rights-of-way 
and civic spaces by parapets, walls or by other approved means. Roof plans and elevations must 
show proposed equipment locations, approximate dimensions, and line of sight from public 
rights-of-way and civic spaces. The reviewing body may require additional equipment setbacks, 
screen walls, or other mitigation to ensure compliance.   

7) A-frame buildings and Mansard-style roofs are not permitted.   
8) Exception to Pitched Roof: When a building requires a roof span greater than 50-feet, or the 

internal function of the building or a portion of the building makes construction of a pitched roof 
impractical, the reviewing body may allow an alternative roof form. An alternative roof form 
includes an “applied pitched roof” or flat roof constructed over the building or portion of the 
building as specified below. An example when a pitched roof is considered impractical would be 
the need to have large rooftop stove vents over the kitchen portion of a restaurant. Roof forms 
constructed under this exception shall comply with the standards below.  

Page 58 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

33 

b. Flat Roof: Flat roofs shall comply with the following standards:  

1) Sandy Style stepped parapets and detailed coursing shall be provided on those elevations 
visible from an abutting public street. Parapets shall be varied so that the length of a 
parapet does not exceed 30 feet without a change in the parapet height of at least 2 feet or 
as necessary to hide rooftop equipment.   

2) Average parapet height shall not exceed 15 percent of the supporting wall height, and the 
maximum parapet height shall not at any point exceed one-third (1/3) of the height of the 
supporting wall;   

3) A cornice projecting at least six (6) inches from the building face shall be provided at the 
roofline of all elevations visible from abutting public rights-of- ways and pedestrian ways; 

4) Parapet corners shall be stepped and the parapet be designed to emphasize the center or 
primary entrance(s), unless the primary entrance is at the corner of the building.   

RESPONSE: The proposal has requested a Special Variance to eliminate the required building. 
Guiding principles of 17.90.00(C) call for the incorporation of Cascadian architecture into new 
buildings with the intention of celebrating Sandy as well as emphasizing a “village” scale and 
character in new development. Additionally, Subsection 17.90.00(D)(9) has identified that “strongly 
thematic architectural styles, forms, colors, materials and/or detailing that do not conform to the 
Sandy Style” may be denied or required to be modified. Staff has determined that eliminating the 
building, and therefore not incorporating the required architectural style, would violate the above-
mentioned guiding principle as well as Subsection 17.90.00(D)(9) which is may be grounds for 
denial. 

D. Building Orientation and Entrances  

Intent: To maintain and enhance downtown and village commercial streetscapes as public spaces, 
emphasizing a pedestrian-scale and character in new development, consistent with the Sandy Style; and 
to provide for a continuous pedestrian network that promotes pedestrian safety, comfort and 
convenience, and provides materials and detailing consistent with the Sandy Style. (Figures 17.90.110-
A, 17.90.110-B, 17.90.110-C, 17.90.110-D, 17.90.110-E, 17.90.110-F, 17.90.110-G, 17.90.110-H, 
17.90.110-I and representative photos in Appendix E)  

1. Buildings shall be oriented to a public street or civic space. This standard is met when at least 50 
percent of the subject site’s street frontage is comprised of building(s) placed within 10 feet of a 
sidewalk or an approved civic space and not more than 20 percent of the off- street parking on a 
parcel as required by SDC 17.98, tract or area of land is located between a building’s front 
façade and the adjacent street(s).  

2. Where parking is placed between a front façade and a street, a landscaped berm and/or 
architectural features, such as a knee wall, colonnade, arbor, trellis and/or similar device, shall be 
placed behind the sidewalk to partially screen the parking area from the sidewalk. The partial 
screen shall be designed to achieve at least 50 percent opacity at the time of installation, with 
openings for walkways connecting to the building’s primary entrance.  

3. Ground floor spaces shall face a public street and shall be connected to it by a direct pedestrian 
route (i.e., avoid out-of-direction travel). Where the reviewing authority determines that facing 
the building to a street is not practical, it may require the building to face a civic space.  

Page 59 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

34 

4. Buildings located at the intersection of two streets shall use a corner building entrance; where a 
corner entrance is not practical due to the internal functioning of the building space or due to 
physical constraints of the site (e.g., topography, accessibility, or similar circumstances), a 
building entrance must be provided within 40 feet of the corner. The building corner must use 
detailing that emphasizes the corner location and is consistent with the Sandy Style. Examples of 
acceptable detailing include a rounded or chamfered (beveled) corner, weather protecting 
canopy, plaza, sculpture, and/or similar pedestrian-oriented features.  

5. Upper story residential units shall have an entrance separate from the ground floor (commercial) 
space and conform to applicable building codes.  

6. Buildings shall provide at least two elevations where the pedestrian environment is “activated”. 
An elevation is “activated” when it meets the window transparency requirements in subsection 
17.90.110(E), below, and contains a customer entrance with a pedestrian shelter extending at 
least five (5) feet over an adjacent sidewalk, walkway or civic space. Where providing a 
customer entrance on two (2) elevations is not practical, the reviewing body may allow a single 
entrance.  

7. Primary entries shall face a public street or a civic space and shall be spaced not more than 30 
feet apart on average. Ancillary shops shall provide entries every 30 feet, on average.  

8. Primary entrances shall be architecturally emphasized and visible from the abutting public right-
of-way or civic space and shall be sheltered with a canopy, overhang, or portico with a depth of 
at least five (5) feet. Architectural emphasis should be provided by a gabled shelter where 
practical, consistent with the Sandy Style. Detailing around the base of the building, such as 
stonework, benches or art, should also be used to emphasize an entrance.  

RESPONSE: The proposal has requested a Special Variance to eliminate the required building. 
Should the variance be granted, the proposal will be considered in conformance with the above 
standard. While the proposal includes sidewalks along both Proctor Blvd./US HWY 26 and Beers 
Avenue the elimination of the required building also reduces the ability for the proposal to be 
consistent with the Sandy Style as there is not an opportunity to incorporate the design elements the 
guiding principles in Subsection 17.90.00(C) identify. The Special Variance request is discussed in 
detail in Chapter 17.66 of this document.  

E. Windows  

Intent: To promote business vitality, public safety and aesthetics through effective window placement 
and design, consistent with the Sandy Style. (See Figures 17.90.110-C, 17.90.110-D, 17.90.110-E, 
17.90.110-F, 17.90.110-G, 17.90.110-H, and 17.90.110-I, and representative photos in Appendix E.  

1) Unified Design. Building plans must provide for unity in window placement and design so that 
all sides of a building relate to one another and multiple buildings on a development site relate to 
one another.  

2) Ground Floor Windows. The ground floor elevation of all new buildings shall contain display 
areas, windows, and doorways along street frontages and where the building abuts a civic space 
as follows: Lots with multiple street frontages are required to meet this standard on only two 
frontages.  

Building Size  Percentage Windows Required  
0 - 10,000 sq. ft.  40 percent of ground floor elevation  
Greater than 10,000 sq. ft.  25 percent of ground floor elevation  

Page 60 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

35 

a. Windows shall contain clear glass to allow views to interior activity or display areas. The 
bottom edge of windows shall be no less than three (3) feet above the adjacent finished 
grade. Where the internal functions of a building preclude windows at this height, the 
reviewing body may approve locating windows above or below this height. Display 
boxes affixed to a building’s exterior are not counted in meeting the above standard. 

b. Windows shall be square or vertically oriented and may consist of vertically stacked or 
horizontally banked window units. Windows located over a door or transom windows 
may be horizontally oriented.  

c. Windows with any dimension exceeding six (6) feet shall be divided into smaller panes 
(e.g., 2 foot by 2 foot grid) with real divided panes, vinyl inserts or applied dividers. 

d. Windows shall have trim or moldings at least three (3) inches in width around them, or 
have reveals of at least three (3) inches in depth. Casings shall consist of a drip cap, head 
casing, side casings, and/or sills.  

4) Prohibited Windows. The following window types are prohibited:  

 
Building Size  Percentage Windows Required  
0 - 10,000 sq. ft.  40 percent of ground floor elevation  
Greater than 10,000 sq. ft.  25 percent of ground floor elevation  

1. Darkly tinted windows, mirrored windows, and similar windows are prohibited adjacent to street 
sidewalks, civic spaces and walkways.  

2. Glass curtain windows are not permitted facing public right-of-ways, except where the reviewing 
body finds that such windows are consistent with the Sandy Style.  

RESPONSE: The applicant has requested a Special Variance to eliminate the required building. 
Should the Minor Conditional Use be approved the property will incorporate pavement to display 
recreational vehicles for sale on approximately 90 percent of the subject property. The display of 
recreational vehicles will promote a sense of business vitality within the C-1 zone district; however, 
it will not incorporate, nor is it consistent with, Sandy Style as there is not an opportunity to 
incorporate the design elements identified in the guiding principles in Subsection 17.90.00(C).  

F. Landscaping and Streetscape Design  

Intent: To promote business vitality, public safety and aesthetics through effective landscaping and 
streetscape design, consistent with the Sandy Style; and to provide for a pedestrian network that 
promotes pedestrian safety, comfort and convenience, and provides materials and detailing consistent 
with the Sandy Style. (Figures 17.90.110-A, 17.90.110-B, 17.90.110-C, 17.90.110-D, 17.90.110-E, 
17.90.110-F, 17.90.110-G, 17.90.110-H, 17.90.110-I, and Downtown Sandy Streetscape Design)  

1. The provisions of Chapter 17.92, Landscaping and Screening General Standards shall apply 
except in the C-1 Zoning District where conformance with the Downtown Sandy Streetscape 
Design, as illustrated in Appendix F is required.  

2. Where any conflict arises between provisions of the Sandy Streetscape Design and other city 
standards (e.g., sidewalk width, materials, or similar specifications), the Streetscape Design shall 

Page 61 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

36 

prevail. All applicable provisions of Chapter 17.92 Landscaping and Screening General 
Standards must be met, except as modified by the Downtown Sandy Streetscape Design.  

RESPONSE: The proposal includes incorporating a 5-foot wide planter strip along the east and 
south property lines/frontages with a 25.5-foot by 25.5-foot planter area located in the subject 
property’s southwest corner. Within these landscaping areas the proposal includes a total of eight 
Red Twig Dogwood (5 gallon) plants with native grass mix at 1-pound per 1,000 square feet within 
the areas not occupied by the proposed plants. Additionally, the proposal includes installing a 3-foot 
tall chain link fence dividing the proposed pavement and landscaped areas parallel to the west 
property line. Within these landscaped areal a total of 9 Dwarf Burning Bushes, 3 J.PM. 
Rhododendrons, both proposed to be 5-gallon plantings as well as 5, 7-foot tall or 1.5-inch caliber 
Kousa Dogwood trees. The areas not occupied by these plantings will consist of Kinnikinic 
Groundcover and bark dust. In addition, the Landscape Plan (Exhibit N, Sheet C3) includes the 
installation of an ornamental fence. The proposed fence includes square column wraps at 
approximately 2-feet wide, standing 4-foot tall not including a 3-inch thick beveled concrete column 
cap. The proposed columns are to be wrapped with a stone veneer in Bucks County color which is 
consistent with the desired Sandy Style masonry standards for new development within the C-1 zone 
district. Between the columns the proposal includes installing two, horizontal trex rails (2-inch by 6-
inch) to complete an ornamental fence bordering the subject property. The proposed rails are 
proposed to be brown which is also in keeping with the Sandy Style. Should the proposed fencing be 
approved the applicant shall submit the proposed trex rail color for staff’s final approval. The 
proposed color shall be compatible with Appendix C, Building Color Palette or be of a natural 
stain/finish. Once approved the applicant shall update the plans to reflect the choice. In addition to 
the onsite landscape improvements the proposal includes closing an existing ingress/egress curb cut 
(vehicular entrance) on Proctor Blvd/US HWY 26 to include new curb, gutter, ground covering, a 
Chanticleer Pear tree and improved sidewalks while on Beers Ave. a new sidewalk system is 
proposed with new pavement and 2, 48-inch squared tree wells each to include a Red Barron 
Crabapple tree at 7-feet tall or 1.5-inch caliber. Red Barron Crabapple are proposed within the 
Beers Ave. right-of-way which is an approved street tree, however staff recommends the applicant 
choose an alternative tree species that is not a fruit bearing tree in order to prevent safety concerns 
from falling fruit as well as to eliminate potential maintenance concern due to fruit splatter. The 
intent of the landscaping and fencing is to define and enhance the visual appearance of the site; staff 
finds the proposed landscaping provides a combination of trees, shrubs, and ground cover that 
softens appearance of the proposed off-street activity from the public street while enhancing the 
pedestrian environment and adding to the intended “village” scaled development. In addition to the 
landscaping, the proposed ornamental fence provides an additional element of screening of the 
proposed use, outdoor product display or storage of merchandise, which assists in the development 
complying with the design regulations of Chapter 17.92. The intent of the landscaping and fencing is 
to define and enhance the visual appearance of the site; however, staff does not believe the proposed 
landscaping provides a combination of trees, shrubs, or evergreen ground cover that softens or 
screens the appearance of the proposed off-street activity from the public street, which is required 
per the regulations of Chapter 17.92. Further analysis regarding landscaping and screening can be 
found within Chapter 17.92 of this report.   

G. Civic Space  

Page 62 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

37 

Intent: To connect buildings to the public realm and create comfortable and attractive gathering places 
and outdoor seating areas for the public, consistent with Sandy’s Downtown Streetscape Design. (See 
Figures 17.90.110-H and 17.90.110-I).  

1. Not less than three (3) percent of the ground floor area of every development shall be improved 
as civic space.  

2. All civic spaces shall have dimensions of not less than eight (8) feet across and have a surface 
area of not less than 64 square feet. No civic space is required if the size of this space results in 
an area of less than 64 square feet.  

3. Civic space improvements may include plazas, private extensions of sidewalks and walkways 
(i.e., to accommodate outdoor seating), public art, pedestrian-scale lighting, bus waiting areas, 
tourist amenities (e.g., way finding signs as approved by the city) or similar pedestrian amenities 
as approved through Design Review.  

4. The highest priority locations for civic space are those areas with the highest pedestrian activity 
(e.g., street corners and mid-block pedestrian access ways) that have a western or southern 
exposure.  

5. Unless impractical, civic spaces shall abut a public right-of-way or otherwise be connected to 
and visible from a public right-of-way by a sidewalk or pedestrian access way; access ways shall 
be identifiable with a change in paving materials (e.g., pavers inlaid in concrete or a change in 
pavement scoring patterns and/or texture) or painted. Where a right-of-way connection is not 
possible, the owner must provide a public access way easement to the civic space. Civic spaces 
shall not be gated or closed to public access, unless otherwise required by the city. 

6. Exceptions: Building additions and remodels subject to Type I Design Review are not required to 
set aside or improve civic space, though they are encouraged to do so.  

RESPONSE: The proposal has requested a Special Variance to eliminate the required building. 
Guiding principles of 17.90.00(C) call for emphasis on a “village” scale and character in new 
development. Eliminating While it can be interpreted that eliminating the building and civic space 
would violate the above-mentioned guiding principles, the proposed landscaping and ornamental 
fencing described in Subsection 17.90.110(F) of this report support the “village” scale character 
and Sandy Style aesthetic the design guidelines have established as well as creates a more 
comfortable and attractive pedestrian experience. 

H. Lighting  

Intent: To promote business vitality, public safety and aesthetics through effective outdoor lighting, 
consistent with the Sandy Style.  

1. Streetscape lighting shall conform to the Downtown Sandy Streetscape Design and the 
requirements of Chapter 15.30, Dark Sky Ordinance.  

2. Exterior lighting must be an integral part of the architectural design and must complement any 
ornamental street lighting and remain in context with the overall architectural character of the 
district. On-site light fixtures conforming to the Sandy Style are encouraged.  

3. Lighting must be adequate for safety purposes. Walkways, parking lots, and building entrances 
should be illuminated at 1.5 – 2.0 foot candles.  

RESPONSE: The proposal included on site lighting (Exhibit F) for the proposed outdoor display 
area. The measurements provided exceed the 1.5- 2.0 foot candle limitation. The applicant shall 

Page 63 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

38 

provide staff with an updated photometric plan limiting the foot candle illumination not to exceed 
City limitations unless Planning Commission interprets the foot candle limitation differently.  

I. Safety and Security  

Intent: To promote natural surveillance of public spaces for safety and security.  

1. Locate windows in a manner that enables tenants, employees and police to watch over 
pedestrian, parking and loading areas.  

2. In commercial, public and semipublic development, including civic spaces, locate windows in a 
manner that enables surveillance of interior activity from the public right- of-way.  

3. Provide street address numbers measuring a minimum of six (6) inches high, which clearly 
locates buildings and their entries for patrons and emergency services.  

4. Locate, orient and select on-site lighting to facilitate surveillance of on-site activities from the 
public right-of-way and other public areas. (See also, subsection H Lighting.)  

RESPONSE: The proposed paved area is intended to display and store recreational vehicles for 
sale. Onsite lighting is proposed to be installed throughout the site to facilitate internal as well as 
external surveillance.   

J. External Storage and Screening  

Intent: To promote land use compatibility and aesthetics, particularly where development abuts public 
spaces.  

1. Exterior storage of merchandise and/or materials, except as specifically authorized as a permitted 
accessory use, is prohibited.  

2. Where such storage is allowed, it must be screened from view from public rights of way and 
civic spaces.  

3. Mechanical, electrical, communications equipment including meters and transformers, and 
service and delivery entrances and garbage storage areas shall be screened from view from 
public rights-of-way and civic spaces.  

4. Trash collection and recycling storage areas must be located within the structure or otherwise 
screened from view in an enclosed facility. Such facilities must be screened from view from 
public rights-of-way and civic spaces behind a screening wall constructed to match the materials 
used on the primary building(s) on the subject site.  

5. Exceptions to the above provisions may be allowed through Design Review where no other 
practical alternative exists and such equipment is made to be visually subordinate to the proposed 
building and landscape, for example, through the use of common materials for screening walls or 
landscape berms. The reviewing body may require additional setbacks, screening walls or other 
mitigation, for aesthetic reasons and to minimize odors or noise impacts on adjoining properties, 
public rights-of-way or civic spaces.  

RESPONSE: The proposal includes a Minor Conditional Use request to increase the percentage of 
“outdoor product display or storage of merchandise” to 100 percent of the retail sales area of the 
site to be associated with the adjacent property to the west, Funtime RV. Should the Minor 
Conditional Use be approved the property will incorporate pavement to display recreational 
vehicles for sale on 90 percent of the subject property. Subsection 17.90.00(D)(3) identifies 

Page 64 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

39 

excessive surface parking lot paving as incompatible with Sandy Style while Subsection 
17.90.00(D)(11) indicates that visible outdoor storage is incompatible with Sandy Style. Therefore it 
is concluded that the proposed use is not compatible with the intent of the code and should be 
denied or modified. Furthermore, Subsection 17.90.110(J)(1) states that exterior storage of 
merchandise and/or materials, except as specifically authorized as a permitted accessory use, is 
prohibited. While the property is being associated with the neighboring business it is being 
reviewed on its own merit; therefore, the proposed use, “outdoor product display or storage of 
merchandise,” is considered the property’s primary use rather than accessory and therefore can 
not be permitted.  
 
However, another interpretation could be that the phrase “except as specifically authorized as a 
permitted accessory use” means not as code language specifically authorizes, but instead as the 
Planning Commission or City Council specifically authorize in a given case. Under that 
interpretation, the Planning Commission could specifically authorize outdoor storage in an amount 
that would exceed 10 percent, assuming the Planning Commission otherwise believed that amount 
complied with other relevant criteria in Chapter 17.90. This interpretation finds some support in the 
fact that Chapter 17.42.20(A)(3) allows storage in excess of 10 percent as a minor conditional use. 
 
Alternatively, should the Planning Commission find the alternative interpretation (17.68.20(A) 
and/or Exhibit M) to be “plausible”, they may approve the proposal with or without conditions as 
they determine necessary to meet the overall intent of the code. Staff finds the proposed 
landscaping provides a decent combination of trees, shrubs, and ground cover that softens 
appearance of the proposed off-street activity from the public street while enhancing the pedestrian 
environment and adding to the intended “village” scaled development. In addition to the 
landscaping, the proposed ornamental fence provides an additional element that softens the 
proposed use, outdoor product display or storage of merchandise, which assists in the development 
complying with the design regulations of Chapter 17.92. 
 

CHAPTER 17.92 – LANDSCAPING AND SCREENING 

17.92.10 GENERAL PROVISIONS  

1. Where landscaping is required by this Code, detailed planting plans shall be submitted for review 
with development applications. No development may commence until the Director or Planning 
Commission has determined the plans comply with the purposes clause and specific standards in 
this chapter. All required landscaping and related improvements shall be completed or 
financially guaranteed prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.  

2. Appropriate care and maintenance of landscaping on-site and landscaping in the adjacent public 
right-of-way is the right and responsibility of the property owner, unless City ordinances specify 
otherwise for general public and safety reasons. If street trees or other plant materials do not 
survive or are removed, materials shall be replaced in kind within 6 months.  

3. Significant plant and tree specimens should be preserved to the greatest extent practicable and 
integrated into the design of a development. Trees of 25-inches or greater circumference 
measured at a height of 4-1⁄2 ft. above grade are considered significant. Plants to be saved and 
methods of protection shall be indicated on the detailed planting plan submitted for approval. 
Existing trees may be considered preserved if no cutting, filling, or compaction of the soil takes 
place between the trunk of the tree and the area 5-ft. outside the tree’s drip line. Trees to be 

Page 65 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

40 

retained shall be protected from damage during construction by a construction fence located 5 ft. 
outside the dripline.  

4. Planter and boundary areas used for required plantings shall have a minimum diameter of 5- ft. 
(2-1⁄2 ft. radius, inside dimensions). Where the curb or the edge of these areas are used as a tire 
stop for parking, the planter or boundary plantings shall be a minimum width of 7-1⁄2 ft.  

5. In no case shall shrubs, conifer trees, or other screening be permitted within vision clearance 
areas of street, alley, or driveway intersections, or where the City Engineer otherwise deems such 
plantings would endanger pedestrians and vehicles.  

6. Landscaped planters and other landscaping features shall be used to define, soften or screen the 
appearance of off-street parking areas and other activity from the public street. Up to 35 percent 
of the total required landscaped area may be developed into pedestrian amenities, including, but 
not limited to sidewalk cafes, seating, water features, and plazas, as approved by the Director or 
Planning Commission.  

7. Required landscaping/open space shall be designed and arranged to offer the maximum benefits 
to the occupants of the development as well as provide visual appeal and building separation.  

8. Balconies required for entrances and exits shall not be considered as open space except where 
such exits and entrances are for the sole use of the unit.  

9. Roofed structures shall not be included as open space except for open unenclosed public patios, 
balconies, gazebos, or other similar structures or spaces.  

10. Driveways and parking areas shall not be included as open space.  
11. All areas not occupied by paved roadways, walkways, patios, or buildings shall be landscaped.  
12. All landscaping shall be continually maintained, including necessary watering, weeding, pruning 

and replacing.  

RESPONSE: The applicant has submitted an updated Landscaping Plan (Exhibit N, Sheet C3) 
(Exhibit D, Sheets C3 & C5) with associated key notes detailing the proposed landscaping. The 
proposal includes incorporating a 5-foot wide planter strip along the east and south property 
lines/frontages with a 25.5-foot by 25.5-foot planter area located in the subject property’s southwest 
corner. Item 4 above states that where a curb or the edge of a landscaped area is used as a wheel 
stop for parking, the planter or boundary plantings shall be a minimum width of 7.5-feet. While the 
proposed paved area is not a parking lot by definition, but rather is considered an outdoor display 
area, the intention is to store recreational vehicles on site; therefore, it is recommended that the 
applicant redesign the landscape strips to be a minimum of 7.5-feet wide or include a wheel stop to 
protect the landscaping.  The proposal is to display (i.e. park/store) RVs upon the property and the 
intention of this criteria is to protect landscape buffers while creating a barrier between parked 
vehicles and pedestrians, therefore it is reasonable to conclude that either a wheel stop, or increased 
planter depth of 7.5-feet is required. While the proposal does not include either of these elements it 
does propose incorporating an ornamental fence to enhance the “village” scale and provide the 
separation that this section of the code intends to achieve. Staff supports the alternative to 
incorporate the ornamental fence as opposed to wheel stops and/or an increased planter depth. 
Should landscaping be damaged by RVs it will need to be replaced. 

17.92.20 MINIMUM IMPROVEMENTS - LANDSCAPING AND SCREENING  

The minimum landscaping area of a site to be retained in landscaping shall be as follows:  

ZONING DISTRICT OR USE  PERCENTAGE  
R-3  25%  

Page 66 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

41 

Manufactured Home Park  20%  
C -1 Central Business District  10%  
C - 2 General Commercial  20%  
C - 3 Village Commercial  10%  
I - 1 Industrial Park  20%  
I - 2 Light Industrial  15%  
I - 3 Heavy Industrial  10%  

RESPONSE: The subject property is zoned Central Business District, C-1. Section 17.92.20 requires 
that a minimum of 10 percent of the site be landscaped in the C-1 zone district. The submitted 
Landscape Plan (Exhibit D, Sheet C3) identifies a total of 1,399 square feet of landscaped area, which 
equates to a total of 10 percent of the site (13,985/1,399). Staff has included a condition that should the 
Planning Commission choose to approve the Minor Conditional Use, the applicant shall include a 
condition for the site to include a 5-foot wide landscape buffer to include evergreen plantings at a 
minimum of 6-feet tall to be located the length of the north property line in order to create an additional 
buffer for the neighboring, residential development to the north. This would result in an increased 
landscape percentage for the overall property and ultimately exceeding the required 10 percent 
minimum required for the C-1 zone district.  

17.92.30 REQUIRED TREE PLANTINGS  

Planting of trees is required for all parking lots with 4 or more parking spaces, public street frontages, 
and along private drives more than 150 feet long. Trees shall be planted outside the street right-of-way 
except where there is a designated planting strip or City adopted street tree plan.  

The City maintains a list of appropriate trees for street tree and parking lot planting situations. Selection 
of species should be made from the city-approved list. Alternate selections may be approved by the 
Director following written request. The type of tree used shall determine frequency of trees in planting 
areas. Trees in parking areas shall be dispersed throughout the lot to provide a canopy for shade and 
visual relief.  

Area/Type of Planting  Canopy  Spacing  
Street Tree  Medium  30 ft. on center  
Street Tree  Large  50 ft. on center  

• Trees may not be planted:  
• Within 5 ft. of permanent hard surface paving or walkways, unless specific species, special 

planting techniques and specifications approved by the Director are used.  
• Unless approved otherwise by the City Engineer:  

 Within 10 ft. of fire hydrants and utility poles  
 Within 20 ft. of street light standards  
 Within 5 ft. from an existing curb face  
 Within 10 ft. of a public sanitary sewer, storm drainage or water line  

• Where the Director determines the trees may be a hazard to the public interest or general welfare.  

Page 67 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

42 

• Trees shall be pruned to provide a minimum clearance of 8 ft. above sidewalks and 12 ft. above 
street and roadway surfaces.  

RESPONSE: Section 17.92.30 requires trees to be planted along public street frontages. The 
proposal indicates that Beers Avenue will include an eight-foot wide curb-tight sidewalk with street 
trees in 48” x 48” tree wells 30 feet on center. The proposed trees to be planted within the tree wells 
on this frontage are Red Barron Crabapple species at 7-feet tall and/or 1.5 caliper.  

The existing curb cut on Proctor Blvd./US HWY 26 is not in use and has been abandoned for some 
time therefore the curb cut shall be eliminated, and ground cover shall be installed. The proposal 
includes the planting of a Chanticleer Pear Tree centered in between two existing trees within the 
right-of-way. 30-feet on center from the tree adjacent to the west. This results in an approximately 
45-foot from center separation from the existing tree that will be adjacent to the east of the proposed 
pear tree. To create visual symmetry, the applicant shall relocate the proposed tree centered 
between the existing trees located along the Proctor Blvd./US HWY 26 of the subject property.  

All trees shall include tree ties with twine, loosely tied so as not to damage the trunk and shall be 
removed after one growing season (or a maximum of 1 year).  

17.92.40 IRRIGATION  

Landscaping shall be irrigated, either with a manual or automatic system, to sustain viable plant life.  

RESPONSE: All landscape areas will be irrigated using either manual or automatic system per the 
applicant’s narrative (Exhibit C). The applicant shall demonstrate compliance with this proposal 
at time of building permit.  

17.92.50 TYPES AND SIZES OF PLANT MATERIALS  

A. At least 75% of the required landscaping area shall be planted with a suitable combination of 
trees, shrubs, or evergreen ground cover except as otherwise authorized by Chapter 17.92.10 F.  

B. Plant Materials. Use of native plant materials or plants acclimatized to the Pacific Northwest is 
encouraged where possible.  

C. Trees shall be species having an average mature spread of crown greater than 15 feet and having 
trunks which can be maintained in a clear condition with over 5 feet of clear wood (without 
branches). Trees having a mature spread of crown less than 15 feet may be substituted by 
grouping the same so as to create the equivalent of a 15-foot crown spread.  

D. Deciduous trees shall be balled and burlapped, be a minimum of 7 feet in overall height or 1 1⁄2 
inches in caliper measured 6 inches above the ground, immediately after planting. Bare root trees 
will be acceptable to plant during their dormant season.  

E. Coniferous trees shall be a minimum five feet in height above ground at time of planting.  
F. Shrubs shall be a minimum of 1 gallon in size or 2 feet in height when measured immediately 

after planting.  
G. Hedges, where required to screen and buffer off-street parking from adjoining properties shall be 

planted with an evergreen species maintained so as to form a continuous, solid visual screen 
within 2 years after planting.  

Page 68 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

43 

H. Vines for screening purposes shall be a minimum of 1 gallon in size or 30 inches in height 
immediate after planting and may be used in conjunction with fences, screens, or walls to meet 
physical barrier requirements as specified.  

I. Groundcovers shall be fully rooted and shall be well branched or leafed. If used in lieu of turf in 
whole or in part, ground covers shall be planted in such a manner as to provide complete 
coverage in one year.  

J. Turf areas shall be planted in species normally grown as permanent lawns in western Oregon. 
Either sod or seed are acceptable. Acceptable varieties include improved perennial ryes and 
fescues used within the local landscape industry.  

K. Landscaped areas may include architectural features or artificial ground covers such as 
sculptures, benches, masonry or stone walls, fences, rock groupings, bark dust, decorative hard 
paving and gravel areas, interspersed with planted areas. The exposed area developed with such 
features shall not exceed 25% of the required landscaped area. Artificial plants are prohibited in 
any required landscape area.  

RESPONSE: The submitted Landscape Plan (Exhibit D, Sheet C3) includes 5-foot wide landscaping 
strips on the east and south property lines as well as a 25.5-foot by 25.5-foot planter area located in 
the subject property’s southwest corner. Within these landscaped areas a total of 9 Dwarf Burning 
Bushes, 3 J.PM. Rhododendrons, both proposed to be 5-gallon plantings as well as 5, 7-foot tall or 
1.5-inch caliber Kousa Dogwood trees. The areas not occupied by these plantings will consist of 
Kinnikinic Groundcover and bark dust. Within these landscaping areas the proposal includes native 
grass mixture throughout with a total of eight Red Twig Dogwood plants. The Red Twig Dogwood 
plant is classified as a shrub and will be 5-gallons in size each. Subsection 17.92.50(A) requires at 
least 75% of the required landscaping area shall be planted with a suitable combination of trees, 
shrubs, or evergreen ground cover that softens or screens the appearance of the proposed off-street 
activity from the public street.  
 
Staff finds the proposed landscaping provides a combination of trees, shrubs, and ground cover that 
covers 75% of the landscaping area and softens the appearance of the proposed RVs from the public 
street while enhancing the pedestrian environment and adding to the intended “village” scaled 
development. In addition to the landscaping, the proposed ornamental fence provides an additional 
element of screening of the proposed use, outdoor product display or storage of merchandise, which 
assists in the development complying with the design regulations of Chapter 17.92. 
 
Staff has concluded the proposed landscaping does not meet the intent of 17.92.50(A) therefore 
the applicant shall resubmit a landscape plan that provides a combination of trees, shrubs, or 
evergreen ground cover of at least 75 percent of the required landscaping area for staff review 
and approval.  

 
17.92.70 LANDSCAPING BETWEEN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY AND PROPERTY LINES  

Except for portions allowed for parking, loading, or traffic maneuvering, a required setback area 
abutting a public street and open area between the property line and the roadway in the public street 
shall be landscaped. That portion of the landscaping within the street right-of-way shall not count as part 
of the lot area percentage to be landscaped.  

RESPONSE: The proposal includes incorporating a 5-foot wide planter strip along the east and 
south property lines/frontages with a 25.5-foot by 25.5-foot planter area located in the subject 

Page 69 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

44 

property’s southwest corner. This area is within the subject property’s boundaries leaving no 
unlandscaped area between the property lines and public right-of-way. 
 

17.92.80 BUFFER PLANTING - PARKING, LOADING AND MANUEVERING AREAS  

Buffer plantings are used to reduce building scale, provide transition between contrasting architectural 
styles, and generally mitigate incompatible or undesirable views. They are used to soften rather than 
block viewing. Where required, a mix of plant materials shall be used to achieve the desired buffering 
effect.  

Buffering is required in conjunction with issuance of construction permits for parking areas containing 4 
or more spaces, loading areas, and vehicle maneuvering areas. Boundary plantings shall be used to 
buffer these uses from adjacent properties and the public right-of-way. On-site plantings shall be used 
between parking bays, as well as between parking bays and vehicle maneuvering areas. A balance of 
low-lying ground cover and shrubs, and vertical shrubs and trees shall be used to buffer the view of 
these facilities. Decorative walls and fences may be used in conjunction with plantings but may not be 
used by themselves to comply with buffering requirements. Exception: truck parking lots are exempt 
from parking bay buffer planting requirements.  

RESPONSE: The C-1 zone district is intended to provide the principal focus for civil and social 
functions while Subsection 17.90.00(D)(11) indicates that visible outdoor storage is incompatible 
with Sandy Style. Therefore, it is concluded that the proposed use is not compatible with the intent of 
the code and should provide buffer planting if approved. The proposal includes a 5-foot wide planter 
strip along the east and south property lines/frontages with a 25.5-foot by 25.5-foot planter area 
located in the subject property’s southwest corner all of which has incorporated a combination of 
trees, shrubs, and ground cover that is expected to provide a landscaped buffer from the pedestrian 
pathways in conjunction with the ornamental fencing described within Subsection 17.92.90 of this 
report. ; however, as required by Subsection 17.92.50 of this report, at least 75 percent the 
required landscaped area is not proposed to be planted with a combination of trees, shrubs, and 
evergreen cover nor is the proposed landscaping adequate to buffer the outdoor storage proposed 
which has been determined to be incompatible with the C-1 zone district per Subsection 
17.90.00(D)(11). The applicant shall resubmit a landscape plan that provides a combination of 
trees, shrubs, or evergreen ground cover of for at least 75 percent of the required landscaping 
area for staff review and approval.  

 
17.92.90 SCREENING (HEDGES, FENCES, WALLS, BERMS)  
 
Screening is uses where unsightly views or visual conflicts must be obscured or blocked and where 
privacy and security are desired. Fences and walls used for screening may be constructed of wood, 
concrete, stone, brick, and wrought iron, or other commonly used fencing/wall materials. Acoustically 
designed fences and walls are also used where noise pollution requires mitigation.  
 

A. Height and Opacity. Where landscaping is used for required screening, it shall be at least 6 ft. in 
height and at least 80 percent opaque, as seen from a perpendicular line of sight, within 2 years 
following establishment of the primary use of the site.  

B. Chain Link Fencing. A chain link fence with slats shall qualify for screening only if a landscape 
buffer is also provided in compliance with Section 17.92.00 above.  

Page 70 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

45 

C. Height Measurement. The height of hedges, fences, walls, and berm shall be measured from the 
lowest adjoining finished grade, except where used to comply with screening requirements for 
parking, loading, storage, and similar areas. In these cases, height shall be measured from the 
finished grade of such improvements. Screening is not permitted within vision clearance areas. 

D. Berms. Earthen berms up to 6 ft. in height may be used to comply with screening requirements. 
Slope of berms may not exceed 2:1 and both faces of the slope shall be planted with ground 
cover, shrubs, and trees. 
 

RESPONSE: The Landscape Plan (Exhibit N, Sheet C3) includes the installation of an ornamental 
fence. The proposed fence includes square column wraps at approximately 2-feet wide, standing 4-
foot tall not including a 3-inch thick beveled concrete column cap. The proposed columns are to be 
wrapped with a stone veneer in Bucks County color which is consistent with the desired Sandy Style 
masonry standards for new development within the C-1 zone district. Between the columns the 
proposal includes installing two, horizontal trex rails (2-inch by 6-inch) to complete an ornamental 
fence bordering the subject property. The proposed rails are proposed to be brown which is also in 
keeping with the Sandy Style. Should the proposed fencing be approved the applicant shall submit 
the proposed trex rail color for staff’s final approval. The proposed color shall be compatible with 
Appendix C, Building Color Palette or be of a natural stain/finish. Once approved the applicant 
shall update the plans to reflect the choice. The proposal includes installing a 3-foot tall chain link 
fence dividing the proposed pavement and landscaped area parallel to the west property line. Per 
Item B above a chain-link fence is only permitted when a landscape buffer is provided in accordance 
with Chapter 17.92 which staff has concluded has not been met. The applicant shall resubmit a 
landscape plan that provides a combination of trees, shrubs, or evergreen ground cover for at 
least 75 percent of the required landscaping area for staff review and approval.  

 
CHAPTER 17.98 – PARKING, LOADING, AND ACCESS REQUIREMENTS 
 
17.98.20 OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS 

RESPONSE: Within the submitted narrative (Exhibit C) the applicant has identified the intended 
primary use of the subject property is to be for recreational vehicle parking and storage for the 
Funtime RV business located on the four lots directly west of the subject property. Using aerial 
photography, it can be observed that the existing Funtime RV site has approximately 18 standard 
parking spaces available for both patrons and employees of the site. The proposal includes a special 
variance to eliminate the required building and no additional employees have been identified 
therefore no increase in intensity associated with the parking demand will occur. The existing 
parking on the existing Funtime RV site is adequate to serve both the existing and proposed use of 
the site.  

17.98.40 SHARED USE OF PARKING FACILITIES  
 

A. Except for residential uses, required parking facilities may be located on an adjacent parcel of 
land or separated only by an alley, provided the adjacent parcel is maintained in the same 
ownership as the use it is required to serve. 

 
RESPONSE: The proposal indicates the intention of utilizing existing parking located on the four 
lots directly west of the subject property known as Funtime RV. The property is separated only by a 
property line and maintained under the same ownership therefore the proposed parking 

Page 71 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

46 

arrangement is permitted. Should ownership of either parcel be transferred each property will 
have to demonstrate it can independently conform to applicable parking standards at time of 
review.  

 
17.98.130 PAVING 
 

A. Parking areas, driveways, aisles and turnarounds shall be paved with concrete, asphalt or 
comparable surfacing, constructed to city standards for off-street vehicle areas. 

 
B. Gravel surfacing shall be permitted only for areas designated for non-motorized trailer or 

equipment storage, propane or electrically powered vehicles, or storage of tracked vehicles. 
 
RESPONSE:  Per Exhibit N, Sheet C3 Exhibit D, Sheet C3 the proposal will incorporate new 
asphalt paving surface to be used for the outdoor product display or storage of merchandise which 
is proposed for the subject site.  

 
17.98.140 DRAINAGE 
 
Parking areas, aisles and turnarounds shall have adequate provisions made for the on-site collection of 
drainage waters to eliminate sheet flow of such waters onto sidewalks, public rights-of-way and abutting 
private property.  
 

RESPONSE:  Section 17.98.140 contains requirements for drainage. All stormwater runoff shall 
be treated, detained and discharged in conformance with Section 13.18 and 13.20 of the Sandy 
Municipal Code (SMC) and the latest edition of the City of Portland Stormwater Management 
Manual (including Section 1.10 of the Source Control Manual). 

17.98.150 LIGHTING  

Artificial lighting shall be provided in all required off-street parking areas. Lighting shall be directed 
into the site and shall be arranged to not produce direct glare on adjacent properties. Light elements shall 
be shielded and shall not be visible from abutting residential properties. Lighting shall be provided in all 
bicycle parking areas so that all facilities are thoroughly illuminated and visible from adjacent sidewalks 
or vehicle parking lots during all hours of use.  

RESPONSE: The proposal included on site lighting (Exhibit F) for the proposed outdoor display 
area. The measurements provided exceed the 1.5- 2.0 foot candle limitation. The applicant shall 
provide staff with updated plans limiting the foot candle illumination not to exceed City 
limitations unless Planning Commission interprets the foot candle limitation differently.    

17.98.160 BICYCLE PARKING FACILITIES  

Multi-family developments, industrial, commercial and community service uses, transit transfer stations, 
and park and ride lots shall meet the following standards for bicycle parking facilities. The intent of this 
section is to provide secure bicycle parking that is visible from a building’s primary entrance and 
convenient to bicyclists.  

A. Location.  

Page 72 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

47 

1. Bicycle parking shall be located on-site, convenient to primary building entrances, and have 
direct access to both the public right-of-way and to the main entrance of the principal structure.  

2. Bicycle parking areas shall be visible from building interiors where possible.  
3. For facilities with multiple buildings or parking lots, bicycle parking shall be located in areas of 

greatest use and convenience to bicyclists.  
4. If the bicycle parking area is located within the vehicle parking area, the bicycle facilities shall 

be separated from vehicular maneuvering areas by curbing or other barrier to prevent damage to 
parked bicycles.  

5. Curb cuts shall be installed to provide safe, convenient access to bicycle parking areas.  

B. Bicycle Parking Space Dimensions.  

1. Each required bicycle parking space shall be at least 2 1⁄2 feet by 6 feet. If covered, vertical 
clearance of 7 feet must be provided.  

2. An access aisle of at least 5 feet wide shall be provided and maintained beside or between each 
row of bicycle parking. Vertical or upright bicycle storage structures are exempted from the 
parking space length.  

C. Security.  

1. Bicycle parking facilities shall offer security in the form of either a lockable enclosure in which 
the bicycle can be stored or a stationary object (i.e., a “rack”) upon which the bicycle can be 
located.  

2. Racks requiring user-supplied locks shall accommodate both cable and U-shaped locks. Racks 
shall be designed and installed to permit the frame and both wheels to be secured, with removal 
of the front wheel, or the frame and one wheel to be secured, if both wheels remain on the 
bicycle.  

3. Bicycle racks shall be securely anchored to the ground or a structure and shall be designed to 
hold bicycles securely by means of the bicycle frame.  

4. All outdoor bicycle parking facilities shall provide adequate shelter from precipitation where 
possible.  

C. Signing. Where bicycle facilities are not directly visible and obvious from the public right-of- way, 
entry or directional signs shall be provided to direct bicyclists from the public right-of- way to the 
bicycle parking facility.  

E. Exemptions. Temporary street side sales and temporary uses such as fireworks stands, Christmas 
tree sales lots, single-family and two-family residences are exempt from the standards.  

RESPONSE: The proposal includes a special variance to eliminate the required building and no 
additional employees have been identified therefore no increase in intensity associated with the 
parking demand will occur. The existing parking on the existing Funtime RV site is adequate to 
serve both the existing and proposed use of the site.  

CHAPTER 15.30 – DARK SKY ORDINANCE 
 
All exterior lighting is required to conform to the requirements of this chapter.   

Page 73 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

48 

RESPONSE: The proposal included on site lighting (Exhibit F) for the proposed outdoor display 
area. The measurements provided exceed the 1.5- 2.0 foot candle limitation. The applicant shall 
provide staff with updated plans limiting the foot candle illumination not to exceed City 
limitations unless Planning Commission interprets the foot candle limitation differently. The dark 
sky ordinance requires that all new lighting be full-cutoff and downward facing. Based on 
recommendations from the Audubon Society of Portland and the International Dark-Sky Association, 
all proposed lighting shall be full-cutoff and not exceed 3,000 Kelvins.     

III. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION 
 

Jerry Fisk submitted an application seeking approval for a minor conditional use permit to increase the 
subject property’s outdoor product display/storage of merchandise to 100 percent when Subsection 
17.42.10(C)(8) limits the amount of outdoor product display/storage on a site to 10 percent as an 
accessory use. The request has been made by the applicant as the proposed use is associated with the 
neighboring four properties, Funtime RV, and a building is not needed on this site. Most importantly, the 
applicant’s request is to have outdoor product display and storage as the sole (and therefore primary) use 
on the site and not as a permitted accessory use; therefore, the request must be denied as Subsection 
17.90.110(J)(1) prohibits exterior storage of merchandise and/or materials except as an accessory use. 
While the C-1 zone district would allow storage exceeding 10% as a minor conditional use, as the 
applicant proposes here, Section 17.90.110 states that if “a conflict exists between the requirements of 
Chapter 17.90 and any other code provision, Chapter 17.90 shall prevail; therefore, the application 
should be denied based on the use limitation of 17.90.110(J)(1). In addition, based on the approval 
criteria of Subsection 17.90.00(D)(3) and 17.90.00(D)(11) as well as the use limitations of Subsection 
17.90.110(J)(1), staff has determined the proposed use does not meet several of the conditional use 
criteria for approval. As detailed within Chapter 17.68, criterion B, D and F have been determined not to 
have been met based on the existing language and subsequent interpretation of the code, due to the 
proposed use and associated development’s incompatibility with the surrounding uses and character as it 
relates to site design, visual elements, and landscaping provisions.  
 
In addition, no building is proposed to be on the subject property and the applicant seeks a Type III 
Special Variance from Subsection 17.90.110(D)(1) to eliminate the required 50 percent building 
frontage standard. The site will be used to store and display recreational vehicles in association with the 
retail establishment Funtime RV on the adjacent property to the west. To accommodate the 
display/storage of merchandise the property will include 90 percent pavement with 10 percent 
landscaping. The intent of the building orientation standard is to maintain and enhance downtown and 
village commercial streetscapes as public spaces, emphasizing a pedestrian-scale and character in new 
development, consistent with the Sandy Style; and to provide for a continuous pedestrian network that 
promotes pedestrian safety, comfort and convenience, and provides materials and detailing consistent 
with the Sandy Style.  

Staff finds the proposed omission of the required building eliminates the ability for the site to 
incorporate required Sandy Style elements and therefore does not support the intent of the building 
orientation standard (Section 17.90.110(D)) or the guiding principles of Subsection 17.90.00(C). 
Specifically, removal of the required building does not emphasize a “village” scale as described in 
Subsection 17.90.00(C)(3) nor does it allow for the expression of Cascadian architectural elements, as 
described in 17.90.00(C)(4) and therefore violates the intent of the Sandy Style requirement. In addition, 
eliminating the required building frontage required for the site and introducing additional pavement for 
outdoor product display or storage of materials (in this case RVs) violates Subsections 17.90.00(D)(3) 

Page 74 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

49 

and 17.90.00(11), both of which are defined as incompatible with the Sandy Style and are considered 
grounds for denial. In addition, by eliminating the required building the Sandy Style features associated 
with buildings found in Subsection 17.90.110 will not be applicable therefore the importance of an 
enhanced streetscape to achieve the guiding principles of Subsection 17.90.00(C) are important to 
review for compliance.  

The above interpretation was completed based on the language of the code as written. However, another 
interpretation could be that the phrase “except as specifically authorized as a permitted accessory use” 
means not as code language specifically authorizes, but instead as the Planning Commission or City 
Council specifically authorize in a given case. Under that interpretation, the Planning Commission 
could specifically authorize outdoor storage in an amount that would exceed 10 percent, assuming the 
Planning Commission otherwise believed that amount complied with other relevant criteria in Chapter 
17.90. This interpretation finds some support in the fact that Chapter 17.42.20(A)(3) allows storage in 
excess of 10 percent as a minor conditional use. Staff finds the proposed landscaping provides a decent 
combination of trees, shrubs, and ground cover that softens appearance of the proposed off-street 
activity from the public street while enhancing the pedestrian environment and adding to the intended 
“village” scaled development. In addition to the landscaping, the proposed ornamental fence provides 
an additional element that softens the proposed use, outdoor product display or storage of merchandise, 
which assists in the development complying with the design regulations of Chapter 17.92. 
 
IV. RECOMMENDATION  
Staff Based on the language of the code as written, staff recommends the Planning Commission hold a 
public hearing to take public testimony regarding the proposal. Staff recommends the Planning 
Commission deny the requested conditional use, 100 percent outdoor product display or storage of 
merchandise. Additionally, staff recommends Planning Commission deny the requested Type III Special 
Variance from Subsection 17.90.110(D)(1) to eliminate the required 50 percent building frontage 
standard.  
 
The Planning Commission has also been presented with the alternative interpretation (Exhibit M) of the 
phrase “except as specifically authorized as a permitted accessory use” to consider. This interpretation 
provides an alternative that if supported by the Commissioners, would provide justification for the 
Planning Commission to approve the requested conditional use, 100 percent outdoor product display or 
storage of merchandise. Should the Planning Commission choose to make this interpretation staff notes 
the proposed landscaping provides a combination of trees, shrubs, and ground cover that softens the 
appearance of the RVs from the public street while enhancing the pedestrian environment and adding to 
the intended “village” scaled development which is required per the regulations of Chapter 17.92 and 
addressed within the guiding principles of Subsection 17.90.00(C). In addition to the landscaping, the 
proposed ornamental fence provides an additional element of screening of the proposed use, outdoor 
product display or storage of merchandise, which assists in the development complying with the design 
regulations of Chapter 17.92 as well as adds a design element to enhance the pedestrian environment 
and “village” scale Chapter 17.90 strives for.  
 
CONDITIONS: 
Based on code review of the proposal, staff has identified several items either requiring additional 
information, modification and/or staff review should the Planning Commission approve the requested 
Minor Conditional Use Permit and/or Special Variance. Prior to submittal of a Building Permit the 
applicant shall complete the following: 

Page 75 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

50 

In addition to the above conditions of approval, modifications as recommended in this report including 
but not limited to the following (required order of submission and completion of 
improvements/inspections will be detailed in the final order):  
 
1. All public utility installations shall conform to the City’s facilities master plans. The applicant shall 

pay plan review, inspection, and permit fees as determined by the Public Works Director.  

2. The applicant shall update the plans to included include brick paver strips and scoring pattern 
matching the existing sidewalks in the Urban Renewal Area along Beers Avenue.  
 

3. The existing curb cut on Proctor Blvd. shall be eliminated and replaced with standard Type C curb 
per 17.100.90(C) of the SMC. To create visual symmetry, the applicant shall relocate the proposed 
tree centered between the existing trees located along the Proctor Blvd./US HWY 26 of the subject 
property. All trees shall include tree ties with twine, loosely tied so as not to damage the trunk and 
shall be removed after one growing season (or a maximum of 1 year).  

 
4. All landscape areas shall be irrigated using either manual or automatic system per the applicant’s 

narrative (Exhibit C). The applicant shall demonstrate compliance with this proposal at time of 
building permit. Irrigation requirements of Subsection 17.92.40 shall be met.  
 

5. As determined necessary by City staff and ODOT; The applicant shall install metal tube supports 
and signs per ODOT Standard Drawing TM490, Crosswalk Closure Detail (Exhibit I) on both the 
north and south sides of the west leg of Proctor Blvd./US HWY 26 and Beers Avenue.  
 

6. The applicant shall update and submit plans indicating all of Proctor Blvd. frontage includes a six-
foot wide sidewalk adjacent to the property line with the remaining right-of-way developed as a 
planter strip. 
 

7. The existing ADA ramp located at the northwest corner of the Proctor/US HWY 26 and Beers 
Avenue intersections shall be replaced with ADA-compliant ramps and the new curb return 
transition to the improvements on Beers Avenue shall mirror the existing curb extension on the east 
side of Beers Avenue.  

 
8. The applicant shall complete one of the following options: 

 
• A gate is proposed at the proposed Beers Ave. driveway approach to the sales lot. The 

proposed driveway throat shall be deep enough to allow an RV and tow vehicle to pull 
into the site without interfering with traffic on Beers Ave. or blocking the sidewalk, or 

• A gate is proposed at the entrance to the sales lot. In order to prevent an RV and tow 
vehicle entering or exiting the site from interfering with traffic on Beers Ave. or blocking 
the sidewalk the gate shall be motorized and remotely operated to allow entrance and exit 
to and from the approach without stopping in the public right-of-way.  

 
8. The applicant shall demonstrate compliance with street frontage improvements including lighting 

and storm drainage per 17.84.80 (G) of the SMC upon submission of construction plans. Detailed 
analysis of the proposed pedestrian and bicyclist improvements shall be completed during the 
construction plans review process.   
 

Page 76 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

51 

9. The applicant shall record a cross access easement to the adjacent properties with state highway 
frontage with the County Assessor to facilitate shared access.  

 
10. Any work to be completed within the highway right-of-way (Proctor Blvd./US HWY 26) requires an 

ODOT Miscellaneous Permit to be completed, including tree planting.  
 
11. The applicant shall provide staff with an updated photometric plan limiting the foot candle 

illumination not to exceed City limitations. All proposed lighting shall be full-cutoff and not exceed 
3,000 Kelvins.   

12. Should ownership of either parcel be transferred each property will have to demonstrate it can 
independently conform to applicable parking standards at time of future development review.  

13. All landscaping shall be continually maintained, including necessary watering, weeding, pruning, 
and replacing.  

14. All parking, driveway and maneuvering areas shall be constructed of asphalt, concrete, or other 
approved material. 

15. All stormwater runoff shall be treated, detained and discharged in conformance with Section 13.18 
and 13.20 of the Sandy Municipal Code (SMC) and the latest edition of the City of Portland 
Stormwater Management Manual (including sSection 1.10 of the Source Control Manual). 

16. The applicant shall submit a grading and erosion control permit and request an inspection of 
installed devices prior to any additional grading onsite. The grading and erosion control plan shall 
include a re-vegetation plan for all areas disturbed during construction of the subdivision. All 
erosion control and grading shall comply with Section 15.44 of the Municipal Code and as detailed 
below.  

17. The applicant shall submit a plan identifying the locations of street lights along with specifications 
of proposed lighting fixtures to be reviewed in detail with construction plans. Full cut-off lighting 
shall be required and proposed street lighting on Proctor Blvd./US HWY 26 shall conform to the 
Streetlight Detail identified within Appendix F of the Development Code.  

18. All on-site earthwork activities including any retaining wall construction should follow the 
requirements of the current edition of the Oregon Structural Specialty Code (OSSC). If the proposal 
includes a retaining wall, the applicant shall submit additional details on the proposed retaining wall 
for staff review and approval.  

19. Site grading should not in any way impede, impound or inundate the adjoining properties. All the 
work within the public right-of-way and within the paved area should comply with American Public 
Works Association (APWA) and City requirements as amended. The applicant shall submit a 
grading and erosion control permit and request an inspection of installed devices prior to any 
additional grading onsite. All erosion control and grading shall comply with Section 15.44 of the 
Municipal Code.  

20. If the applicant chooses to postpone street tree and/or landscaping installation, the applicant shall 
post a performance bond equal to 120 percent of the cost of the landscaping, assuring installation 
within 6 months. The cost of street trees shall be based on the street tree plan and at least $400 per 

Page 77 of 187



 
W:\City Hall\Planning\REPORTS\2018\18-030 DR - CUP Fun Time RV Staff report UPDATED.doc 
 

52 

tree. The cost of landscaping shall be based on the average of three estimates from three landscaping 
contractors; the estimates shall include as separate items all materials, labor, and other costs of the 
required action, including a two-year maintenance and warranty period.  

21. The applicant will be required to pay for the cost of all street signs and the City will install the street 
signs. Signs to be determined during the construction review period. 

22. The applicant shall submit the proposed trex rail color for staff’s final approval. The proposed color 
shall be compatible with Appendix C, Building Color Palette or be of a natural stain/finish. Once 
approved the applicant shall update the plans to reflect the approved color.  

23. The applicant shall include a 5-foot in depth landscape buffer to include evergreen plantings at a 
minimum of 6-feet tall to be located the length of the north property line in order to create an 
additional buffer for the neighboring, residential development to the north. Updated plans required to 
be submitted to Planning for review and approval prior to any grade work in the site.  

24. The applicant shall choose an alternative tree species from the proposed Red Barron Crabapple that 
is not a fruit bearing tree and update the plans to include the change.   

  

Page 78 of 187



Page 79 of 187

jcramer
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



Page 80 of 187



Page 81 of 187



Page 82 of 187



Page 83 of 187



Page 84 of 187



Page 85 of 187

jcramer
Text Box
EXHIBIT B



Page 86 of 187



Page 87 of 187



Page 88 of 187



Page 89 of 187



Page 90 of 187



Page 91 of 187



Page 92 of 187

jcramer
Text Box
EXHIBIT C



Page 93 of 187



Page 94 of 187



Page 95 of 187



Page 96 of 187



Page 97 of 187



Page 98 of 187



Page 99 of 187



Page 100 of 187



Page 101 of 187



Page 102 of 187



Page 103 of 187



Page 104 of 187



Page 105 of 187



Page 106 of 187



Page 107 of 187



Page 108 of 187



Page 109 of 187

jcramer
Text Box
EXHIBIT D



Page 110 of 187



Page 111 of 187



Page 112 of 187



Page 113 of 187



Page 114 of 187



Page 115 of 187



Page 116 of 187



Page 117 of 187



Page 118 of 187



Page 119 of 187

jcramer
Text Box
EXHIBIT E



Page 120 of 187



Page 121 of 187



Page 122 of 187



Page 123 of 187



Page 124 of 187



Page 125 of 187



Page 126 of 187



Page 127 of 187



Page 128 of 187



Page 129 of 187



Page 130 of 187



Page 131 of 187



Page 132 of 187



Page 133 of 187



Page 134 of 187



Page 135 of 187



Page 136 of 187



Page 137 of 187



Page 138 of 187



Page 139 of 187



Page 140 of 187



Page 141 of 187

jcramer
Text Box
EXHIBIT F



Page 142 of 187



Page 143 of 187



Page 144 of 187



Page 145 of 187



Page 146 of 187

jcramer
Text Box
EXHIBIT G



Page 147 of 187

jcramer
Text Box



Page 148 of 187

jcramer
Text Box



Page 149 of 187

jcramer
Text Box



Page 150 of 187

jcramer
Text Box



Page 151 of 187

jcramer
Text Box



Page 152 of 187

jcramer
Text Box



Page 153 of 187

jcramer
Text Box



Page 154 of 187

jcramer
Text Box
EXHIBIT H



Page 155 of 187

jcramer
Text Box
EXHIBIT I



Page 156 of 187



Page 157 of 187



Page 158 of 187



Page 159 of 187

jcramer
Text Box
EXHIBIT J



Page 160 of 187



Page 161 of 187

jcramer
Text Box
EXHIBIT K



Page 162 of 187



Page 163 of 187



Page 164 of 187



Page 165 of 187



Page 166 of 187



Page 167 of 187



Page 168 of 187



Page 169 of 187

jcramer
Text Box
Exhibit L



Page 170 of 187



Page 171 of 187



Page 172 of 187



Page 173 of 187



Page 174 of 187



Page 175 of 187



 

 

When an inconsistency exists between criteria in a development code, courts will defer to a local 

government’s interpretation if it is “plausible” considering the express language of the relevant 

provisions and the purposes behind them. This standard recognizes that, in many cases, no single 

interpretation of inconsistent code provisions is correct to the exclusion of all other interpretations.  As 

such, the planning commission could consider another interpretation of 17.90.110(J), even if it is not 

necessarily the “most plausible.” 

In this case, the inconsistency involves the phrase “except as specifically authorized as a permitted 

accessory use” and the fact that any inconsistency is resolved in favor of Chapter 17.90’s criteria.  Staff 

and the city attorney believe that the most plausible interpretation is the one offered above: the code at 

17.42.10(C)(8) specifically authorizes outdoor storage not exceeding 10 percent as a permitted 

accessory use.  Therefore, pursuant to that interpretation, 17.90.110(J) prohibits outdoor storage 

exceeding 10 percent, as is the case in this application. 

However, another interpretation could be that the phrase “except as specifically authorized as a 

permitted accessory use” means not as code language specifically authorizes, but instead as the 

planning commission or city council specifically authorize in a given case.  Under that interpretation, the 

planning commission could specifically authorize outdoor storage in an amount that would exceed 10 

percent, assuming the planning commission otherwise believed that amount complied with other 

relevant criteria in Chapter 17.90.  This interpretation finds some support in the fact that Chapter 

17.42.20(A)(3) allows storage in excess of 10 percent as a minor conditional use. 

Page 176 of 187

jcramer
Text Box
Exhibit M



Page 177 of 187

jcramer
Text Box
Exhibit N



Page 178 of 187



Page 179 of 187



Page 180 of 187



Page 181 of 187



Page 182 of 187



Page 183 of 187



Page 184 of 187



Page 185 of 187



Page 186 of 187



Page 187 of 187


	Agenda
	2.1. Planning Commission - 28 May 2019 - Minutes - Pdf
	2.2. Planning Commission - 24 Jun 2019 - Minutes - Pdf
	2.3. Planning Commission - 22 Jul 2019 - Minutes - Pdf
	4.  18-030 DR/VAR/CUP Funtime RV - Pdf
	Staff report UPDATED
	Exhibits A - K
	Exhibit L
	Exbibit M
	Exhibit N


